
AGENDA

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015)

Monday, 19 March 2018

Dear Councillor

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date Tuesday, 27 March 2018

Time 9.30 am

Venue Main Committee Room, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Northallerton

Yours sincerely

J. Ives.
Dr Justin Ives
Chief Executive

To: Councillors Councillors
N A Knapton (Chairman)
C Patmore (Vice-Chairman)
R A Baker
Mrs C S Cookman

G W Dadd
Mrs J Watson
P R Wilkinson

Other Members of the Council for information 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA

Page No

1. MINUTES 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2018 (AGS.20 to AGS.24), 
previously circulated.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT - REVIEW OF ACTIVITY 1 - 2

Report of the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

4. INTERNAL AUDIT THIRD PROGRESS REPORT 2017/18 3 - 10

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

5. STATUTORY AUDITOR - QUARTERLY UPDATE: AUDIT PLAN 11 - 60

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

6. STATUTORY AUDITOR - ANNUAL GRANT CLAIMS AND RETURNS 2016/17 61 - 70

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

7. VERITAU INTERNAL AUDIT, COUNTER FRAUD AND INFORMATION 
GOVERNANCE  PLANS 2018/19 

71 - 82

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

8. REVIEW OF ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018/19 83 - 132

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

9. BREXIT - UPDATE ON IMPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES 133 - 138

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

10. 2018/19 REPORTING PROGRAMME 139 - 140

Report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards



11. MATTERS OF URGENCY 

Any other business of which not less than 24 hours prior notice, preferably in writing, 
has been given to the Chief Executive and which the Chairman decides is urgent.



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
 27 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
 
Subject: REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT – REVIEW OF ACTIVITY 
 

All Wards 
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:   
 
1.1 The Council, like many public authorities, is governed by the Regulation of Investigatory 

Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).  This Act ensures that public authorities comply with their 
obligations under the Human Rights Act when undertaking investigations which may 
interfere with the rights of individuals.  The Act introduces safeguards on activities such as 
surveillance undertaken by public bodies.   

 
1.2 The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee has been given responsibility for RIPA 

matters.  This involves the Committee in reviewing the Council’s Policy Statement from time 
to time and receiving quarterly reports on any activities which have been authorised under 
RIPA.  

 
2.0 RIPA ACTIVITIES: 
 
2.1 Although RIPA covers a number of activities undertaken by investigatory bodies 

(e.g., phone tapping by the Security Services and Police) its principle use in respect of 
Local Authorities relates to:- 

 
• covert surveillance, and 
• covert human intelligence sources. 

 
2.2 Covert surveillance covers the monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their 

movements, conversations or other activities and communications.  It may be conducted 
with or without the assistance of a surveillance device and includes the recording of any 
information obtained.  RIPA is most relevant to the Council’s activities in effecting 
enforcement procedures such as the investigation and prosecution of offences.  This would 
not normally include the initial investigation of contraventions such as planning enforcement 
or noise investigations, but would normally involve the later stages where criminal activity 
was a possibility.  Although this could technically include breaches of Planning Enforcement 
Notices, breaches of Environmental Health Notices, fraud, etc., the Council’s use of the 
powers has been very limited in recent years.  For example, the Council has not used 
authorisations under the Act in the last three years.   

 
2.3 From 1 November 2012 the Council is only able to use RIPA for directed surveillance for 

potential criminal activity with a possible penalty of at least six months imprisonment.  This 
means that the Council can no longer use the procedure for low-level offences such as 
littering, dog control and fly-tipping.  For serious offences the Council needs approval from 
a magistrate before it can use directed surveillance.   

 
2.4 Another use of the Act is for the Police to authorise use of the Council’s CCTV system for 

specific operations (general use of CCTV is not covered by the Act because this is not 
covert surveillance).   The Police authorise themselves to use the Council’s CCTV system 
for covert surveillance on approximately two occasions per year.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  
2.5 Covert human intelligence sources relate to the use of a third party to gather information.  

For example, this could be an informer or someone used to undertake test purchases.  This 
is not an activity that the Council engages in at all.  The Council also needs the approval of 
a magistrate to carry out this activity.   

 
2.6 The only area in which the Council very occasionally involves itself where RIPA might be 

relevant is covert surveillance.  It is necessary for the Council therefore to follow the 
legislation and the requirements of Government Codes of Practice.  Most of the 
requirements of the Code are dealt with at an Officer level.  However, Members are 
expected to approve a Policy on RIPA and to have some involvement in the monitoring of 
how the Council implements RIPA requirements.   

 
3.0 MONITORING OF RIPA ACTIVITY: 
 
3.1 Codes of Practice on RIPA recommend that quarterly reports are made to Members on 

RIPA activity.  Consideration of such reports has been delegated to the Audit, Governance 
and Standards Committee.  This report therefore constitutes one of those reports and is 
intended to cover the period 24 January to 27 March 2018.  There was no activity 
undertaken by the Council which had RIPA implications and therefore it is recommended 
that the Committee note the position.   

 
4.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
4.1 It is recommended that it be noted that no RIPA activity has been undertaken by the 

Council during the period 24 January to 27 March 2018. 
 

 
GARY NELSON 
DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE (MONITORING OFFICER) 
 
 
Background papers: HDC RIPA Register of Authorisations  
 
Author ref: GN 
 
Contact: Gary Nelson 
 Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
  Direct Line No: (01609) 767012 

Page 2



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee  
  27 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: INTERNAL AUDIT THIRD PROGRESS REPORT 2017/18 

All Wards 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1. The provision of Internal Audit is a statutory requirement (Accounts & Audit Regulations 

2015). The council has formalised its arrangements for internal audit within the Audit 
Charter. Internal Audit work is undertaken by Veritau who carries out work in accordance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

 
1.2 The Audit and Governance Committee approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 at its 

meeting held on the 21 March 2017. The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 
progress made to date in delivering the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan and any developments 
likely to have an impact on the plan throughout the remainder of the financial year.   

 
2.0 THE REPORT 
 
2.1 Veritau is progressing in the delivery of the agreed internal audit plan.  Within the report 

there is a summary of progress made against the plan and information on work completed 
since the previous Committee.     

 
2.2 In the period between 1 April 2017 and 28 February 2018 Veritau has completed six pieces 

of work. One report on Income and Receipting has been finalised since the last committee 
and two draft reports (on Procurement and Emergency Planning / Business Continuity) 
have been issued. All other audit work has started. There are no significant delays 
anticipated, although the work on sundry debtors may not be completed to draft report 
stage by the end of April 2018. 

 
2.3 It is important that agreed actions are fully implemented by managers. The internal audit 

team carries out follow-up work throughout the year of previously agreed actions and 
escalates any issues that have not been addressed, with senior managers. Where 
necessary, the issues will also be brought to the attention of this committee. There are 
currently no matters to bring to the attention of Members.  

 
3.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
 
3.1 The work of internal audit supports the council’s overall aims and priorities by promoting 

probity, integrity and honesty and by helping support the council to become a more 
effective organisation.  

 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 There are no risks associated with this report. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
7.0 EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES: 
 
7.1 There are no equalities or diversity issues associated with the report. 
 
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
8.1 It is recommended Members note the work undertaken by internal audit in the year to date. 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE S151 OFFICER 
 
 
Background papers: None 
     
Author ref:  SC 
 
Contact: Stuart Cutts; Audit Manager; Veritau North Yorkshire 
 Stuart.Cutts@veritau.co.uk 

Page 4

mailto:Stuart.Cutts@veritau.co.uk


 
 

Annex 

 
 
 
 

Hambleton District Council 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18 
 

Period to 28 February 2018 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
Audit Manager:  Stuart Cutts 
Head of Internal Audit: Max Thomas 
  
Circulation List:  Members of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

Head of Service - Finance (s151 Officer) 
 
Date:     28 February 2018 

 

Page 5



 
 

Background 
 
1 The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). In accordance with the 
PSIAS, the Head of Internal Audit is required to report, to ‘those charged with 
governance’ progress against the internal audit plan agreed by the Committee and 
to identify any emerging issues which need to be brought to the attention of the 
Committee.   

 
2 Members of this Committee approved the Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 at their 

meeting on the 21 March 2017.  This report summarises the progress made to date 
in delivering the agreed programme of work. 

 
3 This is the third Internal Audit progress report to be received by the Audit, 

Governance and Standards Committee in 2017/18. This report updates the 
Committee on the work completed between 1 April 2017 and 28 February 2018.  

 
Internal Audit work completed 
  

4 In the period between 1 April 2017 and 28 February 2018 Veritau has completed six 
pieces of work. One report on Income and Receipting has been finalised since the 
last committee. Two draft reports (on Procurement and Emergency Planning / 
Business Continuity) have been issued.  

 
5 All other audit work has started. There are no significant delays anticipated, 

although the work on sundry debtors may not be completed to draft report stage by 
the end of April 2018. 

 
6 Further information is included in Appendix A. 
 
7 Information on the findings from the audits completed since the last Audit, 

Governance and Standards Committee on 23 January 2018 is included in 
Appendix B. 

 
Audit Opinions 

 
8 For most reports we provide an overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the controls under review. The opinion given is based on an assessment of the 
risks associated with any weaknesses in controls identified. For work where we do 
not appraise internal controls then no opinion is provided. We also apply a priority to 
all actions agreed with management. Details of the definitions used when we 
provide an opinion and the priorities for actions are included in Appendix C. 

 
Wider Internal Audit work 

 
9 In addition to undertaking assurance reviews, Veritau officers are involved in a 

number of other areas relevant to corporate matters: 
 

• Support to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee; this is mainly 
ongoing through our attendance at meetings of the Committee and the 
provision of advice to Members.  

Page 6



 
 

 
• Ongoing support to management and officers; we meet regularly with 

management to provide advice on a range of specific business and internal 
control issues. These relationships help to provide ‘real time’ feedback on 
areas of importance to the Council.   

 
• Financial assessments;  this work involves supporting the assurance process 

by using financial reports obtained from Experian (Credit Rating Agency) to 
assess the financial standing of potential contractors. In August and 
September 2017 we worked alongside the Director of Finance (s151 officer) 
and the Corporate Finance Manager to appraise the financial and 
management information of Broadacres Housing Association. This work 
provided important due diligence information to Management and will be used 
in future decision making. 
 

• Follow up of previous audit recommendations; it is important agreed 
actions are regularly and formally ‘followed up’. This helps to provide 
assurance to management and Members that control weaknesses have been 
properly addressed. We have followed up agreed actions either as part of our 
ongoing audit work, or by separate review. We currently have no matters to 
report as a result of our follow up work. 
 

• Risk Management; Veritau advise on the Council’s risk management 
processes.  
 

• Investigations; We perform special or ad-hoc reviews or investigations into 
specific issues.  

 
 
 
Stuart Cutts 
Audit Manager 
Veritau Ltd 
 
 
28 February 2018 
  

Page 7



 
 

Table of 2017/18 audit assignments to 28 February 2018    Appendix A 
Audit Status  Assurance Level  Audit Committee 
 
Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 

   

Revenues and Benefits    
Council Tax and NNDR In Progress   
Housing Benefits 
 

In Progress   

Corporate Finance    
Payroll and Overtime Final Report Reasonable Assurance January 2018 
Creditors In Progress   
Sundry Debtors Planning   
Income and Receipting Final Report Substantial Assurance March 2018  
    
Performance and Improvement    
Risk Management In Progress   
Project Management In Progress   
ICT Network Management 
 

Final Report Substantial Assurance January 2018 

Projects     
Purchase to Pay In Progress   
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard 
(PCI DSS) 

Deferred   

Financial Appraisals – Broadacres 
 

Completed No opinion October 2017  

Director of Leisure and Communities    
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Draft Report   
Disaster Recovery In Progress   
Pre Employment Checks Final Report Reasonable Assurance January 2018 
Environmental Health 
 

In Progress   

Director of Law and Governance    
Procurement Draft Report   
Contract Management In Progress   
Licensing In Progress  

 
 

Director of Economy and Planning    
Design and Maintenance Final Report Limited Assurance January 2018 
Development Management 
 

In Progress   

 
 

   

Follow-Ups 
 

Ongoing   

Page 8



 
 

Summary of Key Issues from audits completed to 28 February 2018; not previously reported to Committee             Appendix B 
 

System/Area Opinion Area Reviewed Date Issued Comments Management Actions Agreed 

Income and 
Receipting 

Substantial 
Assurance 

We reviewed income and 
receipting controls at the 
leisure centres and Civic 
Centre customer services to 
establish whether: 
• Cashing up was performed 

in line with approved 
procedures 

• All cash income was 
stored securely with 
access restricted to 
appropriate officers 

• There were secure 
arrangements for  
collection and recording of 
income 

• All income was accurately 
processed, banked and 
accounted for.  

 
We visited Thirsk and 
Northallerton Leisure Centres 
and Civic Centre Customer 
Services.   
 
We also reviewed the progress 
made in introducing the agreed 
actions following the Strategic 
Income Collection and 
Charging 16/17 audit.  
 

February 
2018 

Strengths: 
Controls surrounding the security of cash and banking 
were generally good, consistent and policy being 
followed. We saw secure arrangements for the storage 
of cash and cheques. Our testing saw that any variances 
in excess of tolerances are being investigated and 
explanations are being recorded.  
 
Further outlets to make payments have been introduced. 
From December 2017 the Paypoint system has allowed 
payments to be made at outlets such as the Post Office.  
PayPal has also been introduced. Leisure Services are 
also encouraging customers to pay by direct debits. 
 
An Income Commercial Strategy policy has been written 
and approved at Cabinet in November 2017. 
 
Areas for Improvement: 
Some small security improvement to key access and 
storage were identified in Customer Services.  
 
Some of the procedures for cashing up late afternoon 
cash payments had not been followed. Some monies 
had been put in the safe but without supporting 
paperwork and not in the appropriate folder, which led to 
monies not being accurately accounted for upon initial 
cash up.  
 
Customer Service Officers who operate the front desk 
currently have the same generic log-in.  Individual log-
ins are important to help allocate responsibility to an 
individual on a specific shift and to protect staff in the 
event of fraud and misappropriation of cash.   
 
Some improvements to the Customer Services and 
Leisure procedure notes were suggested.  

A key safe was ordered following 
the improvements being 
highlighted and is now in place 
and being used.  
 
In the short term existing cashing 
up procedures will be circulated 
and re-enforced again to all team 
members. It is also recognised 
that a generic log in does not fully 
protect staff although we do 
currently have CCTV on reception 
and a written record kept of who 
has been on the shift that day.  
 
In the longer term (March 2019), 
alternative cashing up 
arrangements within Customer 
Services will be evaluated with 
potential changes to systems. 
 
The suggested updates to 
procedures will be completed by 
30 June 2018.  
 
 
. 
 
  

P
age 9



 
 

Appendix C 
Audit Opinions and Priorities for Actions 

 
 

Audit Opinions 
Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our 
opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit. 
Our overall audit opinion is based on 5 grades of opinion, as set out below. 

Opinion Assessment of internal control 
High Assurance Overall, very good management of risk. An effective control environment appears to be in operation. 

Substantial Assurance Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified.  An effective control environment is in operation 
but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified. 

Reasonable 
Assurance  

Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified.  An acceptable control 
environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made. 

Limited Assurance Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major improvements required 
before an effective control environment will be in operation. 

No Assurance Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed.  A number of key areas 
require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse. 

 
Priorities for Actions 
Priority 1 A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention by 

management 

Priority 2 A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be 
addressed by management. 

Priority 3 The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management. 
  
  
 
 

P
age 10



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
  27 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: STATUTORY AUDITOR – QUARTERLY UPDATE: AUDIT PLAN 
 

All Wards 
 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Council’s statutory auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, to 

provide the Committee with the Audit Plan which sets out how they intend to carry out their 
responsibilities as auditor.  The Audit Plan’s purpose is to provide the Audit, Governance 
and Standards Committee with a basis to review the proposed audit approach and scope 
for the 2017/18 audit in accordance with regulations. 

 
1.2 A representative from Ernst & Young LLP will be in attendance at the meeting to go over 

the report. It will also provide an opportunity for Members to question the auditor.   
 
1.3 This Audit Plan summarises the initial assessment of the key risks driving the development 

of an effective audit for Hambleton District Council (“the Council”), and outlines the planned 
audit strategy in response to those risks.   The report is attached at Annex A. 

 
1.4 Also attached at Annex B is Ernst & Young LLP’s most recent sector update paper as at 

February 2018 which is provided for information 
 
 
2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with approving the recommendation.   
 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members note the Audit Plan, the audit approach and scope for 

2017/18 audit. 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (s151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers:  None  
 
Author ref:   LBW 
 
Contact:   Louise Branford-White  
    Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767024 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Hambleton District Council
Audit Planning Report 

Year ended 31 March 2018

February 2018

Annex A

P
age 12



2

Private and Confidential February 2018

Dear Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Members

Audit Planning Report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Planning Report which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to 
provide the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2017/18 audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the 
Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA), auditing standards and other professional requirements. It 
is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 27 March 2018 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you 
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Nicola Wright

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Hambleton District Council

Civic Centre

Stone Cross

Northallerton

DL6 2UU

P
age 13



3

Contents

In April 2015. Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies 
begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment (updated February 2017)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of 
Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management of Hambleton District Council. in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management of Hambleton District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Governance and Standards Committee, and management of Hambleton District 
Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2017/18 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
money risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 14

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


4

Overview of our 2017/18 audit  
strategy

01 01

P
age 15



5

Overview of our 2017/18 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified 
Change from prior

year
Details

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition

Fraud risk/ 
Significant risk

No change in risk or 
focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to 
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by 
Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors 
should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

Misstatements due to fraud or error
Fraud risk/

Significant risk
No change in risk or 

focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively. 

Pension liability valuation
Inherent risk

No change in risk or 
focus

Funding of the Council’s participation in the local government pension scheme will 
continue to have an impact on both Council cash flows and balance sheet liabilities.

The pension liability is the most significant liability on the Council’s balance sheet and 
is calculated through use of a number of actuarial assumptions. A small movement in 
these assumptions could have a material impact on the balance sheet.

Valuation of land and buildings, and 
investment properties

Inherent Risk
No change in risk of 

focus

Land and buildings is the most significant balance in the Council’s Balance Sheet. The 
valuation of land and buildings is subject to a number of assumptions and judgements. 
A small movement in these assumptions could have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 

In addition there is judgement applied in determining the classification of the asset 
between property, plant and equipment and investment property, which has an 
impact on the valuation basis used.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes from risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 16



6

Overview of our 2017/18 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£0.92m Performance 
materiality

£0.69m Audit
differences

£0.05m

Materiality has been set at £920,000, which represents 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure on provision of services. 

Performance materiality has been set at £690,000, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement and the collection fund
greater than £46,000.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they 
merit the attention of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

P
age 17



7

Overview of our 2017/18 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Planning Report covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

• Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Hambleton District Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2018 and of 
the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

• Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

• Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;

• Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;

• The quality of systems and processes;

• Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,

• Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

P
age 18



8

Audit risks02 01

P
age 19



9

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

We plan to perform the following procedures to address the risk:

• Review and test revenue and expenditure recognition policies; 

• Review and discuss with management any accounting estimates on 
revenue or expenditure recognition for evidence of bias; 

• Develop a testing strategy to test material revenue and expenditure 
streams, including testing revenue and capital expenditure to ensure it 
has been correctly classified; and 

• Review a sample of transactions recorded in the ledger and payments 
made from the bank account post year-end and confirm that the 
associated income and expenditure has been recorded in the correct 
period.

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that may occur in 
relation to the risk of fraud in 
revenue and expenditure 
recognition affect the income and 
expenditure accounts. The 
balances in the 2016/17 financial 
statements were as follows:

Gross income: £43.3m

Gross expenditure: £46.1m

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition*

Local authorities have a statutory duty to 
balance their annual budget and are operating 
in a financially challenged environment with 
reducing levels of government funding and 
increasing demand for services. Achievement 
of budget is critical to minimising the impact 
and usage of the Council’s usable reserves and 
provides a basis for the following year’s 
budget. Any deficit outturn against the budget 
is therefore not a desirable outcome for the 
Council and management, and therefore this 
desire to achieve budget increases the risk 
that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated. 

P
age 20



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance 
of management’s processes over fraud.

• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed 
to address the risk of fraud.

• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks 
of fraud.

• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments 
in the preparation of the financial statements.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free 
of material misstatements whether caused by 
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We 
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every 
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error*

P
age 21



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council 
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its 
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by North
Yorkshire County Council.

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code 
requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 
March 2017 this totalled £21.5 million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by 
the actuary to the Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and 
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on 
their behalf. ISAs 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of 
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of North Yorkshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the 

information supplied to the actuary in relation to Hambleton District Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (AON) including the assumptions they 
have used by relying on the work of PwC – Consulting Actuaries commissioned by PSAA 
for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the 
EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s 
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

Valuation of land and buildings, and investment properties

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment 
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are 
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. 
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply 
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the 
balance sheet.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of the 

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their 
work;

• Sample testing key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation 
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 
five year rolling programme as required by the CIPFA Code for PPE, and annually for IP. 
We have also considered if there are any specific changes to assets that have occurred 
and that these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2017/18 to confirm that the remaining asset 
base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 22



12

Value for money risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 23



13

Value for money risks

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. 

For 2017/18 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

• Take informed decisions;

• Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

• Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework 
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required 
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of 
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work 
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further 
work. 

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have 
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other 
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of no significant risks.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 24



14

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 25



15

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2017/18 has been set at £0.92m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental
information about audit materiality in Appendix D.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£46.1m
Planning

materiality

£0.92m

Performance 
materiality

£0.69m
Audit

differences

£0.05m

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at 
£690,000 which represents 75% of planning materiality. We have used a 
threshold of 75% as our experience from prior year audits means that we do 
not anticipate identifying a significant number of audit adjustments.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial (£46,000). We will report to 
you all uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and 
collection fund that have an effect on income or that relate to other 
comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee, or are important from a qualitative 
perspective. 

Key definitions

We request that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee confirm its 
understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 26



16

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 27



17

Objective and Scope of our Audit

Under the Code of Audit Practice, our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we 
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;

• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;

• Entity-wide controls;

• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the annual governance statement; and

• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 28



18

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 

• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2017/18, we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. 

Analytics
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. 

Internal audit
We will meet with Stuart Cutts, Internal Audit Manager, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, 
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial 
statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 29



19

Audit team06 01

P
age 30



20

Audit team

Audit team 
Nicola Wright is the Associate Partner responsible for the overall quality and delivery of the audit service. She will be supported by Mark Outterside as Manager on the 
audit who will be the main point of contact for the audit team. This will be the third year that Nicola has worked on the audit of Hambleton Council and the second year 
Mark has worked on the audit of Hambleton Council.

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings EY Valuations Team

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries

In accordance with auditing standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the 
particular area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 31



21

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 32



22

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2017/18.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and we will discuss them with the 
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes
January

Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee

February

Testing of routine processes and 
controls

Interim audit testing

March

Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee Audit Planning Report and verbal update on interim 

audit

April

Year end audit

Audit Completion procedures
May

June

July
Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee

Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

August Annual Audit Letter

P
age 33



23

Independence08 01

P
age 34



24

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between
you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 35



25

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.

At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.

At the time of writing, there are no non-audit fees and therefore no additional safeguards are required.

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Nicola Wright, your audit engagement associate partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 36



26

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

EY Transparency Report 2017

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2017 and can be found here: 

http://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2017

P
age 37



27

Appendices09 01

P
age 38



28

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 
2017/18

Scale fee
2017/18

Final Fee
2016/17

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 40,754 40,754 40,754

Total Fee – Certification work 11,286 11,286 *11,891

Total audit 52,040 52,040 52,645

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government. 

PSAA has published a scale fee for all relevant bodies. This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the NAO Code. 

* Amount includes proposed £663 scale fee variation for 
additional testing required

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being 
unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a 
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in 
advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public 
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

P
age 39



29

Appendix B

Regulatory update

In previous reports to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, we highlighted the issue of regulatory developments. The following table summarises 
progress on implementation:

Earlier deadline for production and audit of the financial statements from 2017/18

Proposed effective date Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017

Details The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. 
From that year the timetable for the preparation and approval of accounts will be brought forward with draft accounts needing to be 
prepared by 31 May and the publication of the audited accounts by 31 July.

Impact on Hambleton District 
Council

These changes provide challenges for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements. 

We held a faster close workshop for clients in December 2017 to facilitate early discussion and sharing of ideas and good practice. 

We are now working with the Council on ideas coming from the workshop, for example: 

• Streamlining the Statement of Accounts removing all non-material disclosure notes;
• Bringing forward the commissioning and production of key externally provided information such as IAS 19 pension information 

and asset valuations;
• Providing training to departmental finance staff regarding the requirements and implications of earlier closedown;
• Re-ordering tasks from year-end to monthly/quarterly timing, reducing year-end pressure; and
• Establishing and agreeing working materiality amounts with the auditors.

P
age 40



30

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The Statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material 
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on 
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of 
the engagement team

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix C

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

P
age 41



31

Appendix C

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee to determine whether they 
have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

P
age 42



32

Appendix C

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit planning report and audit results report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee into possible instances of 
non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Annual audit letter/audit results report

P
age 43



33

Appendix C

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report

• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report/Audit results report

Certification work Summary of certification work undertaken Certification report

P
age 44



34

Appendix D

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial 
statements, including the Council’s statement that the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable, the Audit, Governance 
and Standards Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit, Governance and Standards  
Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements.

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

P
age 45



35

Appendix D

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:

• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and

• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 46



36

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved. 

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

P
age 47



Local 
Government 
Audit Committee 
Briefing

Annex B

Page 48



Contents 
at a glance

Government and 
economic news 

2

Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

4

Regulation 
news

7

Key questions 
for the Audit 
Committee

8

Find out 
more

8

Page 49



1 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

This sector briefing is one of 
the ways that we support you 
and your organisation in an 
environment that is constantly 
changing and evolving.

It covers issues which may have an impact on your 
organisation, the Local Government sector, and 
the audits that we undertake.

The briefings are produced by our public sector 
audit specialists within EY’s national Government 
and Public Sector (GPS) team, using our public 
sector knowledge, and EY’s wider expertise across 
UK and international business. 

The briefings bring together not only technical 
issues relevant to the Local Government sector 
but wider matters of potential interest to you and 
your organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on any of 
the articles featured can be found at the end of 
the briefing. 

We hope that you find the briefing informative 
and should this raise any issues that you would 
like to discuss further, please contact your local 
audit team.

Page 50



2 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Will the UK economy hold up as Brexit nears?
The latest forecast from the EY Item Club highlights that UK 
GDP growth in 2017 was 1.8%, which was better than expected. 
However, it does compare unfavourably with 2017 GDP growth 
of 2.5% for the Eurozone, 2.3% for the US and an estimated 
3.0% globally.

The momentum from 2017, an improving outlook for consumer 
spending, and the increased likelihood of a near-term Brexit 
transition arrangements are expected to support UK growth this 
year. With this, we have nudged up our UK GDP forecast for 2018 
to 1.7%, up from the 1.4% we predicted in our Autumn forecast in 
October last year.

However, further out, the UK’s limited productivity performance 
and ongoing Brexit and political uncertainties will see the UK 
achieve only mid-range growth. With this, we have slightly reduced 
our GDP growth projections for 2019 to 1.7% (down from 1.8%), 
1.9% for 2020 (down from 2.0%), and 2.0% for 2021 (down from 
2.2%). Although we have modestly downgraded our expectation of 
the UK’s productivity performance, it remains more optimistic than 
the Office for Budget Responsibility’s latest forecast. Specifically, 
we forecast output per hour to rise 0.9% in 2018 and then 1.3% 
annually during 2019–2021.

Much depends on how the Brexit negotiations develop. 
The expectation is that the UK and EU will make sufficient 
progress to agree a transition arrangement lasting at least two 
years, from late March 2019. Since this will have to be ratified 
across the EU, agreement essentially needs to be reached by 
October 2018. Progress towards a transition deal in late 2018 
should support business confidence and a gradual pick-up in 
investment, helping GDP growth accelerate.

Provisional 2018–19 Local Government 
Finance Settlement
On 19th December 2017 the Government set out the provisional 
funding plan for the 2018–19 financial year, which will be the third 
year of the four year multi-year settlement that was accepted 
by 97% of local authorities. The main themes of the provisional 
settlement were:

Council tax referendum principles — as a result of the financial 
settlement consultation process the government has decided to 
set the core referendum principle at 3% in 2018–19 and 2019–20, 
to match the higher than expected inflation. This change will give 
local authorities more flexibility in deciding how money will be 
raised to offset the increasing financial pressures and demand on 
services. Shire district councils will be allowed an increase of 3% 
or £5 whichever is higher.

Government and 
economic news

Page 51



3 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Continuation of the adult social care precept principle of a 2% 
increase, with the additional flexibility in 2018–19 to increase the 
precept by an additional 1%, from 2% to 3%, provided that the total 
increase across the three years 2017–18 to 2019–20 does not 
exceed 6%.

Analysis by the Local Government Association has estimated that 
the impact of increased flexibility in council tax precepts could be 
worth up to £540mn to local authorities by 2019–20. However 
local services are facing a total funding gap of £5.8bn in 2019–20. 
Therefore, the increased powers to raise council tax are not 
sufficient to meet the future funding gap.

Business rate retention — the Government’s continued intention 
to reform local government financing in the future by allowing 
authorities to retain a greater percentage of business rates instead 
of receiving certain grants (including RSG, public health grant) 
direct from central government. By 2020–21 it is estimated that 
the business rate retention across the local government system 
would be 75%, compared to the current level of 50% retention. 
It was also announced that the 100% business rates retention 
pilot schemes were going to be expanded to include a further 
10 local authorities. 

New homes bonus — since inception the new home bonus has 
allocated £7bn to local authorities to encourage the building of 
over 1.2 million new homes. The Government has decided to 
continue to set the national baseline (below which no bonus will 
be paid) at 0.4% for 2018/19. The national baseline represents 
the annual growth of Band D properties within a local authority 
above which the new homes bonus will be awarded. Government 
retained the option to adjust the baseline in future years based on 
housing statistics as reported through council tax base figures. 
This stability will provide some security for district authorities who 
have based their growth strategy on the New Homes Bonus.

Carillion liquidation
Major public sector building and support services contractor 
Carillion plc went into compulsory liquidation on 15 January 2018. 
Carillion’s sudden collapse is being felt across the country as a 
range of public services, from road building to school meals, have 
been unexpectedly terminated in a number of local authorities. 

The full extent of the affected services is yet to be determined 
as local authorities discuss existing contracts with the Official 
Receiver. Local authorities are implementing contingency plans 
where possible, including either finding alternative contractors 
or taking services back in house. For example the response from 
Oxfordshire County Council in relation to the provision of school 
meals at 90 schools supplied by Carillion was to guarantee 
Carillion staff who worked in schools that the county council would 
ensure that they were paid.

Although the Government has pledged that public services ‘will 
be protected’ after Carillion’s collapse, it is unclear how or when 
funding from central Government will be made available to the 
affected local authorities.

Public sector pay
Since 2013, the Government has implement a policy of a 1% 
annual pay increase cap for public sector workers; which was 
estimated to have saved approximately £5bn by 2019–20. In 
the Autumn Budget 2017 the Government confirmed the end of 
the 1% pay increase policy. Therefore from 2018–19, pay review 
bodies will be able award pay increases of greater than 1% as they 
determine to be appropriate. After the long freeze in real terms of 
public sector pay future increases above 1% have been welcomed; 
and it is thought that this has been needed to retain talent with in 
the public domain. However, this will be an additional cost pressure 
for local authorities that will require financing.

The national employers, who negotiate pay on behalf of 350 local 
authorities, suggested that most employees with salaries over 
£19,430 should receive a 2% increase for 2018–19 and a further 
2% for 2019–20. Lower salaried workers will received higher 
increases based on hourly pay; from £7.78 to £9.00 in April 2019 
and increase equivalent to 15.65%. National employers have said 
this would add another 5.6% to the national pay bill over the two 
years to 2020.

Page 52



4 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

IFRS 15 — revenue from contracts 
with customers
The new revenue standard, IFRS 15, creates a single source of 
revenue requirements for all entities in all industries and is a 
significant departure from legacy IFRS. The new standard applies 
to revenue from contracts with customers and replaces all of the 
legacy revenue standards and interpretations in IFRS, including 
IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IAS 18 Revenue. 

IFRS 15 is principles-based but provides more application guidance 
and increased judgement. IFRS 15 also specifies the accounting 
treatment for certain items not typically thought of as revenue, 
such as certain costs associated with obtaining and fulfilling a 
contract and the sale of certain non-financial assets. The new 
standard will have little effect on some entities, but will require 
significant changes for others.

The standard describes the principles an entity must apply 
to measure and recognise revenue. The core principle is that 
an entity will recognise revenue at an amount that reflects 
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring goods or services.

The principles in IFRS 15 are applied using the following five steps:

1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations 
in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity 
satisfies a performance

Entities will need to exercise judgement when considering the 
terms of the contract(s) and all of the facts and circumstances, 
including implied contract terms. Entities will also have to apply 
the requirements of the standard consistently to contracts with 
similar characteristics and in similar circumstances.

The 2018/19 Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom (the Code) will determine how IFRS 15 
revenue from customers with contracts will be adopted by local 
government bodies. The 2018/19 Code will apply to accounting 
periods starting on or after 1 April 2018 but has not yet been 
published. The CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code 

Page 53



5 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Board met on 6 June 2017 and discussed the implication of 
IFRS 15 on Local Government entities. The minutes of this meeting 
corroborate our view that for most entities income streams from 
contracts with customers are likely to be immaterial. The vast 
majority of income streams are taxation or grant based which do 
not fall within the scope of IFRS 15 as they are not contractually 
based revenue from customers. 

However, this may not always be the case for some smaller English 
authorities or authorities where there is a high public interest in 
commercial activities. The following income streams are within the 
scope of IFRS 15 and will need special consideration if they are 
material to the users of the financial statements: 

 ► Fees and charges for services under statutory requirements 

 ► Sale of goods provided by the authority 

 ► Charges for services provided by a local authority 

EY — CIPFA Accounts Closedown Workshop 
2017–18
EY and CIPFA Financial Advisory Network (FAN) are continuing to 
work in partnership to deliver a programme of accounts closedown 
workshops to support local government finance professionals 
across the country with separate events for police bodies and 
English, Welsh and Scottish local authorities. The workshop 
programme covers the key changes impacting on the production 
of the 2017/18 financial statements and the outcomes of the 
‘telling the story’ changes to the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in 2016/17. Looking forward there are 
significant changes to IFRS that will come through in the 2018/19 
Code and later, so the workshops are also focused on the key risks 
in relation to the new Financial Instruments standard IFRS 9 and 
other future expected changes in the Code with potential to impact 
on the General Fund and the HRA. These workshops also aim to 
prepare local authority finance staff for a ‘faster, smarter and 
more accurate’ accounts closedown for 2017–18. 

By the end of this May, your local authority will need to publish 
its unaudited statement of accounts and publish audited 
accounts by the end of July. These changes provide risks for 

both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements. 
Local Authorities will now have less time to prepare the financial 
statements and supporting working papers. As your auditor, 
we have a more significant peak in our audit work and a shorter 
period to complete the audit. Risks for auditors relate to delivery 
of all audits within same compressed timetable. Failure to meet 
a deadline at one client could potentially put delivery of others 
at risk.

To mitigate this risk we will require:

 ► Good quality draft financial statements and supporting working 
papers by the agreed deadline

 ► Appropriate staff to be available throughout the agreed 
audit period

 ► Complete and prompt responses to audit questions

If your authority is unable to meet key dates within our agreed 
timetable, we will notify you of the impact on the timing of your 
audit, which may be that we postpone your audit until later 
in the summer and redeploy the team to other work to meet 
deadlines elsewhere.

Of the 150 authorities we audit, we currently consider that around 
a quarter have left themselves a significant amount of work to do 
to get there and are running a real risk of missing the deadline 
because they will not have quality draft accounts and supporting 
evidence ready for their auditors by the end of May. 

In addition to our workshops with CIPFA, we have held events 
in each of our local offices and gathered insights from over 100 
practitioners and their local audit teams on the importance of what 
finance teams and auditors each need to do, and collaboratively, 
to achieve a successful faster closure. We have put together a 
comprehensive list of actions to streamline processes, work more 
collaboratively with their auditors and draw on EY’s analytics and 
innovative audit approach to achieve faster close. We include a 
summary below.

Page 54



6 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Summary of faster close activities
Finance teams are:

 ► Critically appraising the content of their accounts, removing 
unnecessary disclosures

 ► Closing the ledger earlier and encouraging greater discipline 
across the authority to comply with deadlines for accruals

 ► Preparing discrete sections of the accounts (e.g., narrative 
report and remuneration notes) and associated working papers 
earlier to facilitate early audit work

 ► Focusing on judgements and significant estimates earlier 
including engagement with auditors

 ► Reviewing the de-minimis level for accruals, including 
discussion with auditors

 ► Conducting a hard close for monthly reconciliations e.g., bank 
reconciliations, feeder systems, etc., with a zero-tolerance to 
reconciling items over a month old

 ► Undertaking weekly cut-off testing in April to ensure that the 
accounts are complete, retaining the evidence in case that item 
is selected for audit testing

Auditors are:

 ► Meeting regularly with finance staff, sharing details of the 
audit approach, agreeing a planned timetable of tasks, 
communicating changes and providing clarity on what is 
expected and when

 ► Bringing forward testing to reduce the amount needed to do 
in the summer. In particular, valuation of land and building and 
other high risk areas

 ► Increasing the use of analytics to interrogate ledger and payroll 
transaction data

 ► Using the online EY client portal to streamline communications 
with finance teams

 ► Attending workshops with finance teams on accounting issues 
and effective working papers

 ► Selecting items for sample testing earlier

Together finance teams and auditors are:

 ► Holding regular meetings throughout the year to share 
progress and discuss issues

 ► Planning respective activities to ensure sufficient capacity on 
both sides

 ► Revisiting audit issues from the prior year, agreeing how 
similar issues can be avoided

 ► Ensuring the client assistance schedule is 
appropriately tailored

We have produced a faster close briefing checklist that you can use 
to ensure that you are doing all you can, alongside working with 
us, to achieve the accelerated timetable. For more information 
please contact your local engagement lead.

Page 55



7 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Regulation 
news

EU General Data Protection Regulation: 
are you ready? 
On 17 December 2015, after more than three years of 
negotiations and several draft versions of the General Data 
Protection Regulation (GDPR), an informal agreement was reached 
between the European Parliament and Council of the European 
Union. The GDPR is a significant change for organisations. It 
introduces more stringent and prescriptive data protection 
compliance challenges, backed by fines of up to 4% of global 
annual revenue. The regulation replaces Directive 95/46/EC, 
which has been the basis of European data protection law since it 
was introduced in 1995. 

The Regulation has a significant impact on organisations in all 
sectors, bringing with it both positive and negative changes in 
terms of cost and effort. 

Key changes proposed by the EU GDPR include:

 ► Regulators can impose fines of up to 4% of total annual 
worldwide turnover or €20,000,000

 ► Data Protection Officers (DPOs) — DPOs must be appointed if 
an organisation conducts large scale systematic monitoring or 
processes large amounts of sensitive personal data 

 ► Accountability — organisations must prove they are 
accountable by establishing a culture of monitoring data 
processing procedures, minimising data retention and building 
safeguards, and documenting data processing procedures

 ► Organisations must undertake Privacy Impact Assessments 
when conducting risky or large scale processing of personal data

 ► Consent to process data must be freely given, explicit and 
individuals must be informed of their right to withdraw 
their consent

 ► Organisations must notify supervisory authorities of data 
breaches ‘without undue delay’ or within 72 hours, unless the 
breach is unlikely to be a risk to individuals

 ► Introduction of new rights — right to be forgotten, right to data 
portability and right to object to profiling

 ► Organisations should design data protection into the 
development of business processes and new systems and 
privacy setting should be set a high level by default

 ► Data processors become an officially regulated entity

Whilst organisations may welcome the harmonisation of laws 
across the 28 EU member states which will make the complex data 
protection landscape easier to navigate, the introductions of new 
rights for individuals are likely to increase the regulatory burden 
for organisations.

Organisations need to review their current data protection 
compliance programmes to determine next steps and decide on 
the level of investment they need to make before 2018 to address 
the changes.

Organisations need to act now to ensure that they are ready 
to comply with the new Regulation when it comes into force on 
25 May 2018.

Page 56



8 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Key questions for the Audit Committee
Has your local Authority considered the changes to council 
tax flexibilities into the 2018–19 budget And the impact of 
changes to business rate retention into your Medium Term 
Financial Strategy? 

Has your local authority been affected by the collapse of 
Carillion plc? How have contingency plans been implemented 
to maintain public services? What (if any) is the local 
authority’s financial exposure to this event?

Has your local authority included in its budget any likely 
increases of employee wages above 1%?

Has your Authority considered how IFRS 15 might impact your 
revenue streams?

How has the local authority prepared for the accelerated 
accounts closedown timetable for 2017–18?

Has the Authority considered the implications of the new 
GDPR, and is the Authority confident that it comply with its 
requirements when it comes into force?

Find out more
EY ITEM Club Forecast

http://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-
markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections 

2018–19 Local Government Finance Settlement

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-
government-finance-settlement-england-2018-to-2019 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/669538/LGFS_consultation_2018-19.pdf

https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/
provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-201819-day 

http://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/archived-press-
releases/2017-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-the-provisional-
local-government-finance-settlement?crdm=0 

Carillion collapse

http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/01/public-sector-
looks-ways-plug-gap-left-carillion

http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/01/public-services-
will-be-protected-after-carillion-collapse

Public sector pay

http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-
8037/CBP-8037.pdf

http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2017/12/local-employers-
issue-2-pay-offer-each-next-two-years

IFRS 15 — revenue from contracts with customers

http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-applying-revenue-
october-2017/$FILE/ey-applying-revenue-october-2017.pdf

EY — CIPFA Accounts Closedown Workshop 2017–18

For Faster Close Activities Checklist: please contact your local 
engagement lead

For a full list of locations and dates available search for 
‘Accounts Closedown Workshop’ at http://www.cipfa.org/training

Page 57



9 Local Government Audit Committee BriefingPage 58



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services. 
The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust and confidence 
in the capital markets and in economies the world over. We develop 
outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our promises to all of our 
stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of 
the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a 
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. For more information 
about our organization, please visit ey.com. 

Ernst & Young LLP
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2018 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.  
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000055804.indd (UK) 02/18. Artwork by Creative Services Group London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its impact on the environment, this document 
has been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general outline of the subjects covered. 
It should neither be regarded as comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it 
be used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no responsibility for any loss 
arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee    
  27 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Finance  
 
Subject: STATUTORY AUDITOR – ANNUAL GRANT CLAIMS AND RETURNS 2016/17  
 

All Wards 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members the statutory auditor’s Annual Grant 

Claims and Returns Report for 2016/17 which is attached at Annex ‘A’.  
 
1.2 The Report summarises the work which the Council’s statutory auditors have undertaken in 

certifying the Council’s major grant claims and returns in relation to the financial year 
2016/17.  In this year the housing benefit subsidy claim is the only item that required 
certification. 

 
 
2.0 RISK ANALYSIS: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with consideration of this report.  However, if this report was 

not considered the Committee would not be fulfilling its terms of reference and would not 
have the opportunity of commenting on the statutory auditor’s work in respect of the grant 
claim for 2016/17. 

 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members receive the statutory auditor’s Certification of Claims and 

Returns 2016/17 Annual Report. 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 Officer) 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: LBW 
 
Contact: Louise Branford-White 
 Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
 Direct Line No: 767024 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



Ernst & Young LLP

Certification of claims annual 
report 2016/17 
Hambleton District Council 

March 2018 

Annex A

Page 62



The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.  
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London  

SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and registered office. 
 

 

 

 

Members of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

Hambleton District Council 

Civic Centre 

Stone Cross 

Northallerton 

DL6 2UU 

February 2018 
 
Direct line: + 44 191 269 4887 
Email: nwright1@uk.ey.com  

Dear Members 

Certification of claims annual report 2016/17 
Hambleton District Council 

This report summarises the results of our work on Hambleton District Council’s 2016-17 claims. 

Scope of work 

Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government and 
other grant-paying bodies and must complete returns providing financial information to government 
departments. In some cases these grant-paying bodies and government departments require 
appropriately qualified auditors to certify the claims and returns submitted to them. 

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and returns and 
to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (“PSAA”) 
by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.  

For 2016/17, these arrangements required only the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. In 
certifying this we followed a methodology determined by the Department for Work and Pensions (“DWP”) 
and did not undertake an audit of the claim. 

Summary 

Section 1 of this report outlines the results of our 2016/17 certification work and highlights the significant 
issues. 

We checked and certified the housing benefits subsidy claim with a total value of £17,750,534. We met 
the submission deadline. A qualification letter was issued which detailed the qualification matters as set 
out in section 1. Our certification work found errors which the Council did not choose to amend.  

Fees for certification work are summarised in section 2. The housing benefits subsidy claim fees for 
2016/17 were published by the PSAA in March 2016 and are available on the PSAA’s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk). 

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee on 27 March 2018. 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Nicola Wright 
Associate Partner 

Ernst & Young LLP 
Citygate 
St James’ Boulevard 
Newcastle Upon Tyne 
NE1 4JD 

 Tel: + 44 191 247 2530 
Fax: + 44 191 247 2501 
ey.com 
 

 

  Tel: 023 8038 2000 
Fax: 023 8038 2001 
www.ey.com/uk 
 

 

 

Page 63

mailto:nwright1@uk.ey.com


 

 

Ernst & Young LLP 
Enc 

Page 64



Contents 

EY  i 

Contents 

1. Housing benefits subsidy claim .................................................................................... 1 

2. 2016/17 certification fees ................................................................................................ 3 

3. Looking forward .............................................................................................................. 4 
 

In April 2015, Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (“PSAA”) issued the ‘Statement 
of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available via the PSAA website 
(www.psaa.co.uk). 

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between 
appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities 
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited 
body in certain areas. 

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated February 2017)’ issued by PSAA sets out 
additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in 
the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (“the Code”) and statute, and covers 
matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature. 

This report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed 
to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, and is prepared for the sole use of 
the audited body. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party. 

Page 65

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/pages/default.aspx


Housing benefits subsidy claim 

EY  1 

1. Housing benefits subsidy claim 

Scope of work Results 

Value of claim presented for 
certification 

£17,750,534 

Amended/Not amended Not amended 

Qualification letter Yes 

Fee – 2016/17 

Fee – 2015/16 

£11,891 (inclusive of additional fee of £663) 

£11,286 

 

Recommendations from 2015/16  

 

1. Earned Income (earned, self-employed and private pension income) 

In 2015/16, our initial sample did not identify any cases where the calculation of 
earnings had been carried out incorrectly. However, as errors were identified in this 
area by the previous auditor, extended testing was completed. This testing found three 
errors totalling £60, where benefit had been overpaid.  As per the DWP guidance, this 
error was extrapolated to £4,959 and was reported in our qualification letter.  This issue 
did not recur in our testing sample in 2016/17. 

2. War Pensions 

The Council’s policy is to apply a percentage increase to the parameters in the system 
and then review each claim individually and update using actual evidence of the War 
Pension award. During detailed testing of individual cases, we identified that claims are 
not always processed using actual evidence of the War Pension award and therefore 
there is a risk that war pension income is misstated. Our testing identified the same 
issue in 2016/17 as set out in point one on the next page. 

3. Rent allowances 

In 2015/16, our initial testing identified two cases where the 2014/15 LHA rate had been 
incorrectly used in the calculation. As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which 
has not been paid, the two underpayments identified did not affect housing benefit 
subsidy but were reported for information. Our testing identified the same issue in 
2016/17 as set out in point two on the next page. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 66



Housing benefits subsidy claim 

EY  2 

Findings from 2016/17  

 
1. War Pensions 

 
The Council’s policy is to apply an increase in the parameters in the system and then 
review each claim individually and update using actual evidence of the War Pension 
award. During detailed testing of the individual cases, we identified that claims were not 
always processed using actual evidence of the War Pension award and therefore there 
is a risk that war pension income is misstated. A similar issue was reported in 2015/16.  
 

2. Rent allowances 
 

Our initial testing identified one case where housing benefit had been overpaid by £4, 
as a result of the incorrect application of the 2015/16 LHA rate. Further testing was 
performed and a further six cases were identified, three of which led to overpayments 
totalling £40. As per the Department for Work and Pensions (“DWP”) guidance, an 
extrapolation was reported in our qualification letter equating to £696. A similar issue 
was reported in 2015/16. 
 

 

Local government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and 

can claim subsidies from the DWP towards the cost of benefits paid. 

The certification guidance requires auditors to complete more extensive ‘40+’ or extended 

testing if initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of benefit or compilation of the claim. 

40+ testing may also be carried out as a result of errors that have been identified in the audit 

of previous years’ claims. We found errors and carried out extended testing in several areas.  

Extended and other testing did not identify any additional errors and as such the Council did 

not amend the claim.  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 67



2016/17 certification fees 

EY  3 

2. 2016/17 certification fees 

The PSAA determine a scale fee each year for the audit of claims.  For 2016/17, these scale 
fees were published by PSAA in March 2016 and are available on the PSAA’s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk). 

Claim or return 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 

 
Actual fee 

£ 
Indicative fee 

£ 
Actual fee 

£ 

Housing benefits subsidy claim 11,891* 11,228 11,286 

 

*The additional fee of £663 is still subject to approval by PSAA. 

 

 

Page 68



Looking forward 

EY  4 

3. Looking forward 

2017/18 

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and 
returns and to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to PSAA by the Secretary 
of State for Communities and Local Government.  

The Council’s indicative certification fee for 2017/18 is £11,286. This was set by PSAA and is 
based on final 2015/16 certification fees.  

Details of individual indicative fees are available at the following web address:  
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/individual-
indicative-certification-fees/ 

We must seek the agreement of PSAA to any proposed variations to these indicative 
certification fees. We will inform the S151 Officer before seeking any such variation. 

2018/19 

From 2018/19, the Council will be responsible for appointing their own reporting accountant 
to undertake the certification of the housing benefit subsidy claim in accordance with the 
Housing Benefit Assurance Process (“HBAP”) requirements that are being established by the 
DWP.  DWP’s HBAP guidance is under consultation and is expected to be published in early 
2018. 

We would be pleased to undertake this work for you, and can provide a competitive quotation 
for this work.   

We currently provide HB subsidy certification to 106 clients, through our specialist 
Government and Public Sector team.  We provide a quality service, and are proud that in the 
PSAA’s latest Annual Regulatory and Compliance Report (July 2017), we score the highest of 
all providers, with an average score of 2.6 (out of 3). 

 

As we have been appointed by PSAA in December 2017 as your statutory auditor, we can 
provide a comprehensive assurance service, making efficiencies for you and building on the 
knowledge and relationship we have established with your Housing Benefits service. 

 

Page 69

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/individual-indicative-certification-fees/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/individual-indicative-certification-fees/


 

 

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory 

Ernst & Young LLP 

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK. 
All Rights Reserved.  

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales  
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited. 

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF. 

ey.com 

Page 70



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee  
  27 March 2018  
 
From: Director of Finance (s151 officer) 
 
Subject: VERITAU INTERNAL AUDIT, COUNTER FRAUD AND INFORMATION 

GOVERNANCE PLANS 2018/19 
 

All Wards 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS).  In accordance with those standards and the Council’s Audit Charter, internal audit 
is required to prepare an audit plan on at least an annual basis.  As stated within paragraph 
7.6 of the Audit Charter this Committee has responsibility to approve the audit plan.  
 

1.2 In addition to Internal Audit, Veritau now provides the Council with specialist Counter Fraud 
and Information Governance services.  For transparency and information purposes we have 
now included these services alongside the audit plan within this report.  These reports do 
not need Committee approval but are presented for the Committee’s information. 
 

1.3 The purpose of this report is to present the proposed Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and 
Information Governance plans for 2018/19. 

 
2.0 THE REPORT 
 
2.1 Once a year the ongoing audit planning process is formalised with the production of the 

Annual Internal Audit plan.  The plan is based on a risk assessment which helps to ensure 
limited audit resources are prioritised towards those areas which are considered to be the 
most appropriate and/or which contribute the most to the achievement of the Council’s 
priorities and objectives. 

 
2.2 The audit plan includes an estimate of the time individual elements will take.  The estimate 

of time seeks to reflect the depth of risks and work required and was agreed between 
internal audit and officers during the planning process.  Discussions at the planning 
process plus previous knowledge and experience help inform these estimates.  Further 
information on the internal audit planning process was provided to this Committee in 
June 2016.  A copy of the internal audit plan for 2018/19 is attached in Appendix 1. 

 
2.3 Plans for Counter Fraud and Information Governance have also been prepared and are 

included in Appendix 2 and Appendix 3.  Progress against the Counter Fraud Plan will be 
reported to Committee on a quarterly basis, along with regular updates against the Internal 
Audit Plan.  The Information Governance Plan is included for completeness providing 
transparency of all three governance services contracted to Veritau North Yorkshire. 

 
2.4 The content of the plans has been subject to consultation with relevant Directors and other 

senior officers as necessary. 
 
2.5 The Internal Audit plan includes 285 days, the Counter Fraud plan 120 days and 

Information Governance 145 days. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



3.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
 
3.1 The work of internal audit, counter fraud and information governance supports the Council’s 

overall aims and priorities by promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping 
support the council to become a more effective organisation. 

 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
4.1 There are no risks associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
7.1 It is recommended that the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 be approved and that the Counter 

Fraud and Information Governance plans be noted. 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER) 
 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: SC 

 
Contact: Stuart Cutts; Audit Manager; Veritau North Yorkshire 
 Stuart.Cutts@veritau.co.uk 
 Jonathan Dodsworth; Counter Fraud Manager; Veritau North 

Yorkshire 
 Jonathan.Dodsworth@veritau.co.uk  
 Robert Beane; Information Governance Manager; Veritau North 

Yorkshire 
 Robert.Beane@veritau.co.uk  

Page 72

mailto:Stuart.Cutts@veritau.co.uk
mailto:Jonathan.Dodsworth@veritau.co.uk
mailto:Robert.Beane@veritau.co.uk


 
 

Annex 1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Hambleton District Council 

 
Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Audit Manager:   Stuart Cutts 
Head of Internal Audit:  Max Thomas 
  
Circulation List: Member of the Audit, Governance & Standards 

Committee 
 Chief Executive 
 Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive 
 Management Team   
 
Date:    March 2018 

 

Page 73



 
 

Introduction 
 
1 This document sets out the planned 2018/19 programme of work for internal 

audit, provided by Veritau for Hambleton District Council. 
 
2 The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards.  In accordance with those standards and the Council’s Audit Charter, 
internal audit is required to prepare an audit plan on at least an annual basis. 

 
3 The Head of Internal Audit is required to produce an annual internal audit opinion 

to the Council based on an objective assessment of the effectiveness of the 
framework of Risk Management, Governance and Internal control. Our planned 
audit work includes coverage of all three areas to develop a wider understanding 
of the assurance framework of the Council and provide a fully informed body of 
work to provide that opinion. 

 
4 The internal audit plan has been prepared on the basis of a risk assessment. 

This is intended to ensure limited audit resources are prioritised towards those 
systems which are considered to be the most risky and/or which contribute the 
most to the achievement of the District Council’s priorities and objectives. The 
content of the internal audit plan has been subject to consultation with directors 
and other senior officers. 

 
5 The internal audit plan is submitted for formal approval by the Audit, Governance 

and Standards Committee who are also responsible for monitoring progress 
against the plan. Changes to the plan will be agreed with the Director of Finance 
(s151 officer) and will be notified to this committee. Proposed work is also 
discussed with the Council’s external auditors to ensure there is no duplication of 
effort. We will provide regular updates on the scope and findings of our work to 
the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee throughout 2018/19.  

 
6 The plan is based on a total number of 285 days for 2018/19 which is the same 

as in 2017/18.  
 
 
2018/19 Internal Audit Plan 
 
7 The plan has been structured in sections under the responsibilities of each 

Director of the Council plus the time allocated on project suport, client support, 
advice and follow up.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2018/19              
 
Director of Finance (s151 officer) 
 
Revenues and Benefits 
Audit Scope Days 
Benefits To review the key risks/controls involved in awarding and paying Housing Benefits 

including the Council Tax Support Scheme. 
10 

   
Integration To review the potential for integrating resources and cross cutting process across 

the Revenues and Benefit Service 
 

15 

  25 
 
Corporate Finance 
Audit Scope Days 
Payroll A review of the payroll system and key risk areas of employee expenditure. 

 
10 

Creditors To review the key risks/controls surrounding the payment of Creditors invoices. 
 

10 

Income and Receipting To review the key risks/controls surrounding receipting and balancing of monies 
received. We will specifically review the key controls in place at Leisure Centres.  
 

10 

General Ledger A review of the key controls of the General Ledger, including bank reconciliations, 
journals and control accounts.  
 

10 

Treasury Management To review the Council’s arrangements with the requirements of the new CIPFA 
code on Treasury Management in the Public Services.  
 

10 
 

  50 
 
 

P
age 75



 
 

 
Performance and Information Technology 
Audit Scope Days 
Risk Management  
 

A review of the effectiveness of the Risk Management arrangements to highlight and 
robustly manage the key strategic risks of the Council. 
 

10 

Performance Management Framework 
 

A review of the effectiveness of the Council's performance management framework. 
 

15 

Digitalisation A review of the effectiveness of the arrangements to improve the use of technology 
and digitalisation throughout the Council. 
 

15 

Transparency Code To review HDC's compliance with the requirements of the Transparency Code. 
 

10 

ICT A review of key ICT risks and controls.  The specific area will be agreed with officers 
during the year. 
 

15 

  65 
 
  140 
 
Director of Law and Governance 
 
Audit Scope Days 
Sickness Absence 
 

A review of the key controls for sickness absence. 15 

Contract Management 
 

A review of the management of a sample of contracts to ensure these were being 
managed in line with Council and best practice expectations 

10 

   
  25 
 
 

P
age 76



 
 

 
Director of Leisure and Environment 
 
Audit Scope Days 
Depot policies and security  
 

A review of the operation of Depot Policies and Procedures including controls for 
securing Council assets. 
 

10 

Depot Training To review training and the completion of training records at the Depot 10 
   
Leisure Services 
 

To review arrangements in respect of key current risk areas at the Leisure Centres, 
including health and safety, personal safety and security.  

10 

   
Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery 
 

To appraise the progress made in further improving Business Continuity 
arrangements.  

5 

  35 
 
Director of Economy and Planning 
 
Audit Scope Days 
Planning – Systems development 
 

To consider the management of the key performance and operational risks areas in 
respect of planning enforcement. 

10 

   
Planning Enforcement To review the key processes and controls for planning systems, for efficiency and 

effectiveness (as well as compliance).  
 

10 

Community Infra Structure Levy 
 

To review the management of the key performance and operational risks in relation 
to the Community Infra Structure Levy 
 

10 

  30 
 
 

P
age 77



 
 

 
Project support 
 
Projects 
Audit Scope Days 
Risk Management – development and 
support 
 

To provide guidance, support and challenge to the newly formed Risk Management 
Group and the evolving processes and procedures. 
 

5 

Payment Card Industry Data Security 
Standards (PCI DSS) 

To further review and support the arrangements the Council has in place to comply 
with the requirements of PCI DSS. 
 

5 

  10 
Client Support, Advice and Follow up 
 
Area Days 
Committee Preparation and Attendance 
 

12 

Audit Planning and Client Liaison 
 

8 

Follow up of previous years findings 
 

8 
 

Miscellaneous Advice 
 

8 
 

Financial Appraisals 
 

5 

Other (e.g. External Audit Liaison, Member and Officer Training) 
 

4 
 

  45 
 

  285 
 

P
age 78



 
 

Annex 2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Hambleton District Council 

 
Counter Fraud Plan 2018/19 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Counter Fraud Manager:  Jonathan Dodsworth 
Deputy Head of Internal Audit: Richard Smith 
  
Circulation List: Member of the Audit, Governance & Standards 

Committee 
 Chief Executive 
 Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive 
 Management Team   
 
Date:    March 2018 
 

 

Page 79



 
 

Introduction 
 
1 Veritau undertakes counter fraud work on behalf of Hambleton District Council. 

This document summarises the agreed areas of counter fraud work for 2018/19.  
 
2 The Counter Fraud Plan is based on an estimate of the amount of resource 

required to provide the range of counter fraud activities required by the council. A 
total of 120 days of counter fraud work has been agreed for 2018/19.  

 
 
2018/19 Counter Fraud Plan 
 
3 A summary of planned areas of work is set out in the table below.  
 
Fraud Area Scope 
  
Counter Fraud General 
 

Monitoring changes to regulations and guidance, 
review of counter fraud risks, and support to the 
council with maintenance of the counter fraud 
framework. This will include completion of the annual 
counter fraud risk assessment and review of the 
counter fraud policy and strategy. 
 

Proactive Work 
 

This includes: 
• raising awareness of counter fraud issues and 

procedures for reporting suspected fraud - for 
example through training and provision of updates 
on fraud related issues 

• targeted proactive counter fraud work - for example 
through local and regional data matching exercises 

• support and advice on cases which may be 
appropriate for investigation and advice on 
appropriate measures to deter and prevent fraud.  

 
Reactive Investigations 
 

Investigation of suspected fraud affecting the council. 
This includes feedback on any changes needed to 
procedures to prevent fraud recurring.  
 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
 

Coordinating submission of data to the Cabinet Office 
for the NFI national fraud data matching programme 
and investigation of subsequent matches. 
 

 

Page 80



 
 

Annex 3 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Hambleton District Council 

 
Information Governance Plan 2018/19 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information Governance Manager: Robert Beane 
Head of Internal Audit:   Max Thomas 
  
Circulation List:  Member of the Audit, Governance & Standards 

 Committee 
  Chief Executive 
  Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive 
  Management Team   
 
Date:    March 2018 

 

Page 81



 
 

Introduction 
 
1 Veritau undertakes information governance work on behalf of Hambleton District 

Council. This document summarises the agreed areas of work for 2018/19.  
 
2 The Information Governance Plan is based on an estimate of the amount of 

resource required to provide the range of activities required by the council. A 
total of 145 days of information governance work has been agreed for 2018/19.  

 
 
2018/19 Information Governance Plan 
 
3 A summary of planned areas of work is set out in the table below.  
 
 
Area Scope 
  
FOI and Subject Access 
Requests 
 

Coordination of responses to Data Protection and 
Freedom of Information requests. 

Data Protection Officer Role 
 

Monitoring compliance with the council’s policy 
framework and data protection legislation (including 
undertaking a programme of audits) as Data Protection 
Officer. 

Data Security Investigations 
 

The investigation of serious data security incidents, the 
coordination of remedial activity and liaison with the 
Information Commissioner’s Office.  

Support and Advice 
 

The provision of advice and guidance on all related 
matters (including policies and procedures, privacy 
notices, data protection impact assessments, data 
sharing agreements, and information asset registers). 
 

 

Page 82



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
  27 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
 
Subject: REVIEW OF ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018/19 
 

All Wards 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to give the Committee an opportunity to review the Council’s 

Treasury Management Strategy for the forthcoming financial year 2018/19.  The Treasury 
Management Strategy is influenced by the capital expenditure plans of the Council for 
2018/19 and the next 10 years. 

 
1.2 Following the collapse of the Icelandic banks in October 2008 – 10 years ago - and in 

accordance with the Audit Commission’s recommendations in their subsequent report “Risk 
and Return – English local authorities and the Icelandic banks” it is a requirement that the 
Council’s Annual Treasury Management Strategy should be subject to Member scrutiny and 
that the scrutiny be fulfilled by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.  This 
scrutiny role is within the Committee’s terms of reference. 

 
1.3 Attached at Appendix ‘A’ is the "2018/19 Capital Programme Budget, Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators" report which was approved by 
Cabinet at its meeting on 6 February 2018.  This report also contains 5 annexes which are 
labelled Annex A to Annex E.  

 
1.4 Paragraphs 4.1 to 4.8 of the cabinet report provide a summary of the proposed Treasury 

Management Strategy for 2018/19 which is included here in italics for ease: 
 

4.1 The Treasury Management Strategy sets out a framework for how the Council will 
manage its investments, cash flows and borrowings for 2018/19.  The Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement including the Annual Investment Strategy, the 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Prudential and Treasury 
Management Indicators is attached at Annex ‘C’.  Specifically the Treasury 
Management Strategy:  

 
 Sets out the statutory and regulatory requirements of the Local Government Act 

2003, the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounts) 
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice and the 
Communities and Local Government Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance 
and also Investment Guidance; 

 
 Identifies reporting arrangements and responsibilities; 
 
 Clarifies the potential requirement to borrow; 
 
 Clearly states that the Council’s priorities for investment are the security of 

capital, whilst also considering liquidity and rate of return; 
 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 Identifies the type and the limits for investments and counterparties with which 
those investments can be placed as well as the maximum duration of the 
investment; 

 
 Calculates the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators based on the 

Capital Programme funding requirements. 
 

4.2 Approval of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement is required by the Local 
Government Act and code of Practices as detailed above and advice has been taken 
from the Council's Treasury Management advisors, Link Asset Services, in 
constructing this strategy. 

 
4.3 At this stage it should be noted that in December 2017, CIPFA issued a revised 

Treasury Management Code of Practice and a revised Prudential Code.  These 
revisions have particularly focused on non-treasury investments and especially on the 
purchase of property with a view to generating income.  Such purchases could 
involve undertaking external borrowing to raise the cash to finance these purchases, 
or the use of existing cash balances. Both actions would affect treasury management. 

 
4.4 Consequently the specific roles of the chief financial officer - Director of Finance 

(S151 Officer) at this Council - have been extended, in accordance with the revised 
Codes, to include a series of new roles in respect of investment in non-treasury 
investments (non-financial assets) and also the new requirement to provide a capital 
strategy.  Further detail is below.   

 
4.5 In addition, the revised Codes have clarified a clear separation between treasury and 

non-treasury investments and also on the role of the treasury management team.  
Therefore, the Treasury Management Strategy Statement  will focus solely on 
treasury, (financial), investments and will not include any level of detail on non-
treasury investments as there is no specific requirement in the Codes to include such 
material at this time. 

 
4.6 CIPFA has issued a statement that accepts that the issue of revised codes at this late 

stage in the current 2018-19 budget cycle will make it very difficult for most authorities 
to fully implement both codes. Accordingly, full implementation is not expected until 
2019-20 across all authorities. Therefore, at this Council in due course, further 
information will be provided to Members during 2018/19 on non-treasury investments 
to deal with significant purchases, their objectives, how they have been appraised, 
how they have been financed, and what powers were used to undertake these 
purchases, as well as more detail on the capital strategy. 

 
 
4.7 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2018/19 reflects the improved 

stability of the banking sector, as well as a more risk averse approach to the system 
of credit ratings.   The proposed Strategy is influenced by the Capital expenditure 
plans for 2018/19 and the next 10 years.  It can be summarised as follows: 
 

 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement and the potential need to borrow; 
 
 The Minimum Revenue Provision policy is defined determining the minimum revenue 

payments that are required; 
 

 The Council continues with its investment priority as being the security of capital and 
also liquidity of its funds, whilst maximising returns commensurate with risk; 
 

Page 84



 Investment of surplus funds can be made to other Local Authorities, nationalised 
Banks, Banks which are part of the UK banking system support package, as well as 
other UK Banks and Building Societies, subject to the application of Capita Asset 
Services’ credit worthiness criteria; 
 

 Investments of surplus funds can be made in foreign Banks and institutions of AA 
sovereign rated countries subject to Capita Asset Services’  credit worthiness criteria; 

 
 Limits for all investments to be placed with specified and non-specified investments 

are: 
 

Individual Limits – These limits will be set at 30% of total investments or £3m 
per counterparty whichever is the higher.  There are three exceptions to this 
policy: 
 

(a) with counterparties that are backed by the Government – Royal Bank of 
Scotland, Natwest, Ulster Bank – (and therefore are more secure) there 
will be a 40% limit or £5m per counterparty whichever is the higher; 

(b) with the Council’s own bank – Lloyds – and associated banks in the 
Lloyds group – Bank of Scotland – there will be a 40% limit or £5m per 
counterparty, whichever is the higher; 

(c) with the Debt Management Agency Deposit there will be an unlimited 
amount with this organisation due to its high level of security.   

 
Group Limits – this policy recognises that individual counterparties 
(banks/financial institutions etc), whilst being sound in themselves, may be part 
of a larger group.  This brings with it added risks where parent institutions may 
be in difficulties.  Therefore, due to the reduced surplus balances available for 
investment, the group limit will also be as stated for the individual limits as it is 
important to diversify the risk to a variety of counterparties.  

 
4.8 The Scheme of Delegation is attached at Annex D and the Role of the S151 Officer 

(Director of Finance), in relation to Treasury Management, details that those charged 
with governance are responsible for Treasury Management activities within the 
organisation, this is attached at Annex ‘E’ ….l. 

 
1.5 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement also refers to Member training, where 

Members with responsibility for scrutinising Treasury Management have the option to be 
provided with specific training.  Training was given to Members in October 2016 providing 
them with an overview of Treasury Management in a Local Authority.  Further training can 
be carried out by Council Officers and / or Link Asset Services - the Council's Treasury 
Management advisors.   
 

2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with approval of this report.  The report will ensure that the 

Committee fulfils its terms of reference and more importantly scrutinises a key policy of the 
Council. 

 
2.2 The risk of not approving the report is that the Council has an inappropriate Treasury 

Management Strategy and that funds may be put at risk or returns on investments are 
reduced. 

 
 

Page 85



3.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members 
 

(a) review the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 and make any 
appropriate recommendations to Cabinet; and 

 
(b)  consider treasury management training during 2018/19. 

 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER) 
 
Background papers:  None  
Author ref:   LBW 
Contact:   Louise Branford-White  
    Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767024 

Page 86



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report To: Cabinet
6 February 2018

Subject: 2018/19 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET, TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY STATEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

All Wards
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:    

1.1 This report considers the 10 year Capital Programme covering the financial years 2018/19 
to 2027/28, the 2018/19 Capital Programme and the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement; including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement.

1.2 The 10 year Capital Programme is set within the fiscal parameters of the Financial Strategy, 
a key feature of which is to ensure that at the end of the 10 year Strategy sufficient reserve 
funds – grants, contribution and capital receipts – remain available so that the Council’s 
capital plans are affordable, sustainable and prudent.  In addition to reserves being 
maintained the Council can also use borrowing to support the Capital programme.  The 
Financial Strategy which supports the Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28 is being 
approved at this February 2018 Cabinet.

1.3 It is a legal requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Prudential 
Code to ensure that the Capital Programme is affordable, sustainable and prudent over a 
3 year period.   The 10 year Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28 clearly adheres to this 
requirement and it should be noted that the 10 year Programme is an estimate.  

1.4 Prior to expenditure being incurred on any scheme a Value for Money project appraisal 
occurs for each project and the annual Capital Programme is approved at Council before 
the commencement of the new financial year.  The 2018/19 Capital Programme is detailed 
in this report.

1.5 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement includes the Annual Investment Strategy 
the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and the Prudential and Treasury 
indicators.  The Treasury Management Strategy manages the cash flow position of the 
Council on a long and short term basis to ensure that cash is available when needed and 
surplus funds are invested in with low risk counterparties (ensuring security of funding is 
key), providing adequate liquidity, whilst also considering investment return.

1.6 The Capital Programme and Treasury Management Strategy are monitored through the 
setting of the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators on an annual basis prior to 
the beginning of the new financial year. 

1.7 This report seeks approval for 
(a) the 10 year Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28
(b) the Capital Programme for the coming financial year 2017/18, which is informed by the

10 year Capital Programme
(c) the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19
(d) the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2018/19
(e) the Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2018/19

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

Page 87



2.0 10 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 to 2027/28:

2.1 The 10 year Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28 shows capital expenditure of 
£27,740,093 which is funded by reserves, contributions, capital receipts, borrowing and 
surplus funds of £31,933,690, which leaves a balance of funding of £4,193,597.  
£1,191,657 of this reserve funding balance is allocated for a revenue purpose to support 
repairs & renewals of the Council’s assets, ICT development and development of the 
economy, this leaves £3,001,940 to be used on capital projects in future years.   The 
Financial Strategy supports this 10 year Capital Programme which shows it is affordable, 
sustainable and prudent over the long term.  

2.2 The 10 Year Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28 is financed from 4 earmarked 
reserves as well as borrowing or reduction in surplus funds: 

£
Repairs and Renewals Fund      522,000
Computer Fund   1,847,070
Capital Receipts Reserve 11,153,680
Economic Development Fund   5,317,343
Borrowing / Surplus Funds   8,900,000

27,740,093

In essence, the Capital Programme is split into these four sections; the detailed Capital 
Programme is shown in Annexes A1, A2, A3 and A4. 

2.3 Repairs and Renewals Fund - Annex A1 details the funding available in the Repairs and 
Renewals Fund, together with a detailed estimate of the schemes that will utilise this 
funding over the next 10 years. This fund will be used to fund all repairs and renewals, 
including a proportion of those in the revenue budget.  This practice will protect the repairs 
budget, from being used to fund other items of expenditure and eliminate excessive 
spending at the end of the year.

2.4 Computer Fund - Annex A2 details the funding available in the Computer Fund, together 
with an estimate of how this funding will be utilised over the next 10 years. No specific 
schemes are detailed through the 10 year strategy because it is envisaged that schemes 
will emerge from the review of all service areas on an ongoing basis which will provide the 
detail of the computer programme.

2.5 The Repairs and Renewals Fund and Computer Fund at the end of the 10 year Strategy 
will require additional funding to be allocated to continue necessary investment.  This will 
be facilitated by income generation opportunities available to the Council and continued 
revenue efficiencies savings from existing budgets.

2.6 Capital Receipts Reserve - Annex A3 details the funding available in the Capital Receipts 
Reserve, together with an estimate of future receipts and the detailed schemes to be 
financed from the Reserve over the next 10 years. The Capital Receipts Reserve has 
sufficient balances to continue to fund capital expenditure beyond the 10 year Capital 
Programme.

2.7 Economic Development Fund – Annex A4 details the Economic Development Fund 
which was created in 2014/15 when £5,000,000 was allocated.  The Investment Plan was 
approved at Cabinet on 2 December 2014.  Funding remaining to be allocated at Quarter 3 
2017/18 is £564,725.

Page 88



2.8 Borrowing / Surplus funds – Borrowing or surplus funds can be used to support the 
Capital Programme in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy Statement.  
Specifically, on 16 December 2014 Cabinet approved capital expenditure of a loan to a 
local Housing Association to assist the local area in increasing housing opportunities for the 
community and also on 7 July 2015 a loan to the Dalton Bridge Business Improvement 
District.  Therefore, the Treasury Management Strategy Statement details the borrowing 
that can occur during 2018/19 in accordance with the capital programme.  There is still the 
flexibility that surplus funds could contribute to the funding of the capital expenditure loans 
and both these options will be considered in the light of the treasury management, 
economic and interest rate environment. 

2.9 In preparing the 10 year Capital Programme a number of schemes were put forward that 
were deemed not to be business critical at this time and therefore are not incorporated in 
the 10 year Capital Programme.  These schemes will be reassessed in the future and 
incorporated into future capital programmes, if they become business critical.

3.0 2018/19 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET:

3.1 The Capital Programme 2018/19 totals £1,744,830 and is funded as follows:
        £

Repairs and Renewals Fund       41,000
Computer Fund     265,630
Capital Receipts Reserve  1,438,200

 1,744,830

3.2 The Capital Programme 2018/19 is attached at Annex ‘B’.  This details the capital 
expenditure cost and also the total cost to the Council, along with associated funding 
received from third parties in respect of the schemes.  In addition, where a scheme appears 
for a number of years, an estimation of the costs in future years is also given.  

3.3 All schemes have been assessed to allow a considered and informed judgement to be 
made in respect of the Value for Money of each scheme.  It is believed that each scheme 
does represent value for money.  The reasons for this judgement are:-

 each scheme contributes towards the attainment of a particular Business Plan target
and a number have clear community benefits;

 schemes can generate ongoing revenue savings;

 although the cost of each scheme is indicative, prior to implementation each scheme
will follow the Council's procurement process to ensure best value is achieved;

 each scheme has a clear completion date.

3.4 A proposal form for each scheme giving evidence of how value for money has been 
obtained has been reviewed by the Corporate Capital Monitoring Group, which is chaired 
by the Director of Finance.

3.5 The 10 year Capital Programme and the 2018/19 Capital Programme will be used to inform 
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and the calculation of the Prudential Indicators as detailed in Paragraph 4.0 and 
subsequent paragraphs.

Page 89



4.0 2018/19 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS: 

4.1 The Treasury Management Strategy sets out a framework for how the Council will manage 
its investments, cash flows and borrowings for 2018/19.  The Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement including the Annual Investment Strategy, the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators is 
attached at Annex ‘C’.  Specifically the Treasury Management Strategy: 

 Sets out the statutory and regulatory requirements of the Local Government Act 2003,
the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounts) Prudential Code, the
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice and the Communities and Local
Government Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance and also Investment Guidance;

 Identifies reporting arrangements and responsibilities;

 Clarifies the potential requirement to borrow;

 Clearly states that the Council’s priorities for investment are the security of capital,
whilst also considering liquidity and rate of return;

 Identifies the type and the limits for investments and counterparties with which those
investments can be placed as well as the maximum duration of the investment;

 Calculates the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators based on the Capital
Programme funding requirements.

4.2 Approval of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement is required by the Local 
Government Act and code of Practices as detailed above and advice has been taken from 
the Council's Treasury Management advisors, Link Asset Services, in constructing this 
strategy.

4.3 At this stage it should be noted that in December 2017, CIPFA issued a revised Treasury 
Management Code of Practice and a revised Prudential Code.  These revisions have 
particularly focused on non-treasury investments and especially on the purchase of 
property with a view to generating income.  Such purchases could involve undertaking 
external borrowing to raise the cash to finance these purchases, or the use of existing cash 
balances. Both actions would affect treasury management.

4.4 Consequently the specific roles of the chief financial officer - Director of Finance (S151 
Officer) at this Council - have been extended, in accordance with the revised Codes, to 
include a series of new roles in respect of investment in non-treasury investments (non-
financial assets) and also the new requirement to provide a capital strategy.  Further detail 
is below.  

4.5 In addition, the revised Codes have clarified a clear separation between treasury and non-
treasury investments and also on the role of the treasury management team.  Therefore, 
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement  will focus solely on treasury, (financial), 
investments and will not include any level of detail on non-treasury investments as there is 
no specific requirement in the Codes to include such material at this time.

4.6 CIPFA has issued a statement that accepts that the issue of revised codes at this late stage 
in the current 2018-19 budget cycle will make it very difficult for most authorities to fully 
implement both codes. Accordingly, full implementation is not expected until 2019-20 
across all authorities. Therefore, at this Council in due course, further information will be 
provided to Members during 2018/19 on non-treasury investments to deal with significant 
purchases, their objectives, how they have been appraised, how they have been financed, 
and what powers were used to undertake these purchases, as well as more detail on the 
capital strategy.

Page 90



4.7 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2018/19 reflects the improved stability of 
the banking sector, as well as a more risk averse approach to the system of credit ratings.   
The proposed Strategy is influenced by the Capital expenditure plans for 2018/19 and the 
next 10 years.  It can be summarised as follows:

 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement and the potential need to borrow;

 The Minimum Revenue Provision policy is defined determining the minimum revenue
payments that are required;

 The Council continues with its investment priority as being the security of capital and
also liquidity of its funds, whilst maximising returns commensurate with risk;

 Investment of surplus funds can be made to other Local Authorities, nationalised Banks,
Banks which are part of the UK banking system support package, as well as other UK
Banks and Building Societies, subject to the application of Capita Asset Services’ credit
worthiness criteria;

 Investments of surplus funds can be made in foreign Banks and institutions of AA
sovereign rated countries subject to Capita Asset Services’  credit worthiness criteria;

 Limits for all investments to be placed with specified and non-specified investments are:

Individual Limits – These limits will be set at 30% of total investments or £3m per
counterparty whichever is the higher.  There are three exceptions to this policy:

(a) with counterparties that are backed by the Government – Royal Bank of
Scotland, Natwest, Ulster Bank – (and therefore are more secure) there will be a
40% limit or £5m per counterparty whichever is the higher;

(b) with the Council’s own bank – Lloyds – and associated banks in the Lloyds
group – Bank of Scotland – there will be a 40% limit or £5m per counterparty,
whichever is the higher;

(c) with the Debt Management Agency Deposit there will be an unlimited amount
with this organisation due to its high level of security.

Group Limits – this policy recognises that individual counterparties (banks/financial 
institutions etc), whilst being sound in themselves, may be part of a larger group.  
This brings with it added risks where parent institutions may be in difficulties.  
Therefore, due to the reduced surplus balances available for investment, the group 
limit will also be as stated for the individual limits as it is important to diversify the risk 
to a variety of counterparties. 

4.8 The Scheme of Delegation is attached at Annex D and the Role of the S151 Officer 
(Director of Finance), in relation to Treasury Management, details that those charged with 
governance are responsible for Treasury Management activities within the organisation, this 
is attached at Annex ‘E’ and is recommended to be approved by Cabinet and Council.

5.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:   

5.1 This report links to the efficient use of Council resources, where the Capital 
Programme 2018/19 demonstrates value for money in the implementation of the individual 
capital schemes and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement ensure the Council 
maximises its return on investments.  Both the Capital Programme and Treasury 
Management allow more resources to be freed up to invest in the Council’s other priorities, 
values and imperatives. 

Page 91



6.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 

6.1 There are two main risks associated with setting the Capital Programme and the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement 2018/19:  

Risk Implication Prob Imp Total Preventative action
Proposed capital 
schemes for 
2018/19 are not 
assessed for risk 
prior to the 
commencement of 
the schemes

The Council is 
unable to 
control capital 
expenditure or 
redirect 
resources to 
priority areas

3 5 15 Capital Scheme Proposal 
Forms are prepared for 
each individual capital 
scheme, including the 
assessment of risk.

Treasury 
management 
function is a high 
risk area due to the 
volume and level of 
large investment 
money transactions. 

The value of the 
investment 
could be lost, 
liquidity of the 
Council could 
be reduced and 
yield not 
maximised.

3 5 15 The Local Government 
Act 2003 (as amended), 
supporting regulations, 
the CIPFA Prudential 
Code and the CIPFA 
Treasury Management in 
the Public Services Code 
of Practice (the code) are 
all adhered to as required

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

7.1 The financial implications are contained within the body of the report. 

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

8.1 The Council is legally required to set a balanced 3 year Capital Programme budget and 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement as set out in Local Government Act 2003.  This 
Council has set a 10 Year Capital Plan to assist with medium term financial planning, 
budget and Council Tax setting for 2018/19 and future years.  This report provides detail of 
the Capital Programme 2018/19 and also includes the requirements for the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement.

8.2 Treasury Management activities have to conform to the Local Government Act 2003, the 
Local Authorities (Capital; Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (SI 
2003/3146), which specifies that the Council is required to have regard to the CIPFA 
Prudential Code (revised 2017) and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 
(revised 2017) and also the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/414), which clarifies the requirements of the 
Minimum Revenue Provision guidance.

9.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES:

9.1 Some capital schemes have specific implications for Equalities.  The equalities implications 
of the individual schemes will be assessed by individual departments once the Capital 
Programme 2018/19 has been approved and the schemes are further developed. Any 
implications will be identified in the individual schemes project plans.

Page 92



10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:     

10.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that:-

1) the 10 year Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28 at £27,740,093 be approved, as
detailed in paragraph 2.2 and attached at Annex ‘A’;

2) the Capital Programme 2018/19 at £1,744,830 detailed in Annex ‘B’ be approved for
implementation;

3) the Treasury Management Strategy attached at Annex ‘C’ be approved;

4) the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement attached in the body of the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement Annex ‘C’ be approved;

5) the Prudential and Treasury Indicators attached at Annex ‘C’ in the body of the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement be approved;

6) the Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation at Annex ‘D’ be approved; and

7) the Treasury Management role of the S151 Officer attached at Annex ‘E’ be approved.

LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER)

Background papers: None

Author ref: LBW

Contact: Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance
Direct Line No: 01609 767024

Saskia Calton
Corporate Finance Manager
Direct Line No 01609 767226

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Capital Programme 2018/19

10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 ANNEX A1

REPAIRS AND RENEWALS FUND Yr 0 Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

INCOME
Opening balance (2,449,874) (2,059,886) (968,886) (838,886) (752,886) (837,886) (691,886) (581,886) (495,886) (409,886) (323,886)
Add: Transfers to / (from) Taxpayers Reserve 1,000,000 0 0 (200,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2,449,874) (1,059,886) (968,886) (838,886) (952,886) (837,886) (691,886) (581,886) (495,886) (409,886) (323,886) (1,259,886)

EXPENDITURE
Repairs and Renewals - Revenue 239,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DFG Revenue 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 500,000

Public lighting replacement 51,574 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 360,000
Air conditioning - Legislative requirement Leisure 25,414 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Purchase of bins and boxes for refuse and recycling 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Civic Centre- Carpet Replacement 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Civic Centre- Internal Painting 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Gym equipment refresh 24,000 0 24,000 0 24,000 0 24,000 0 0 0 0 72,000
Pool Tank Tiles Hambleton Leisure Centre 0 0 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
Car Parks - Reinstatements 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 50,000
Total repairs and Renewal Capital 150,988 41,000 80,000 36,000 65,000 96,000 60,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 522,000
TOTAL REPAIRS AND RENEWALS EXP 389,988 91,000 130,000 86,000 115,000 146,000 110,000 86,000 86,000 86,000 86,000 1,022,000
BALANCE ON REPAIRS & RENEWALS FUND (2,059,886) (968,886) (838,886) (752,886) (837,886) (691,886) (581,886) (495,886) (409,886) (323,886) (237,886) (237,886)

10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 236,779 ANNEX A2

COMPUTER FUND Yr 0 Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

INCOME
Opening balance (1,009,899) (1,088,609) (712,379) (1,465,539) (1,313,539) (1,111,539) (1,914,539) (1,652,539) (1,431,539) (2,231,539) (2,021,539)
Add: Transfers from Council Taxpayers Reserve (400,000) 0 (1,000,000) 0 0 (1,000,000) 0 (1,000,000)

(1,409,899) (1,088,609) (1,712,379) (1,465,539) (1,313,539) (2,111,539) (1,914,539) (1,652,539) (2,431,539) (2,231,539) (2,021,539) (4,088,609)

EXPENDITURE
ICT REVENUE COSTS 33,000 30,000 35,000 40,000 40,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 430,000
ICT Improvements - 2018/19 288,290 346,230 211,840 112,000 162,000 152,000 217,000 176,000 150,000 160,000 160,000 1,847,070
TOTAL COMPUTER FUND EXPENDITURE 321,290 376,230 246,840 152,000 202,000 197,000 262,000 221,000 200,000 210,000 210,000 2,277,070
BALANCE ON COMPUTER FUND (1,088,609) (712,379) (1,465,539) (1,313,539) (1,111,539) (1,914,539) (1,652,539) (1,431,539) (2,231,539) (2,021,539) (1,811,539) (1,811,539)

P
age 95



10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 ANNEX A3

CAPITAL RECIEPTS RESERVE Yr 0 Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

INCOME
Opening Balance (1,866,845) (1,779,961) (1,404,137) (1,575,255) (1,518,706) (1,523,492) (1,015,614) (1,055,574) (1,093,874) (1,092,515) (1,022,515)
Add: Capital Receipts Estimated (1,004,389) (485,000) (220,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Add: Capital receipts - sale of bins (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)
Add: Estimated Grants (DFG) (280,785) (702,720) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000)
Add: Estimated Grants (s106) (54,650) (980,350) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Add: Trsf from Council Tax payers Reserve (1,875,000) (500,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)
Add: Revenue Cont - One off Fund (Increased Leisure Receipts) (200,000) 0
Add: Estimated Grant (Sports England) (228,000)
Add: External Funding for Bedale Public Art (19,975) (25,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Add: Revenue contributions for Kerbside bins (9006) (65,957) (66,286) (66,618) (66,951) (67,286) (67,622) (67,960) (68,300) (68,641) 0 0
Add: Revenue contributions for LED Public Lightning (9006) (13,500) (13,500) (16,500) (13,500) (13,500) (16,500) 0 0 0 0 0
Add: Capital Grants for LED Public Lightning 0 (300,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Add: Revenue contributions for LED Public Lightning 2018 (9006) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (60,000) (40,000) 0 0 0
Total Estimated Capital Receipts (5,619,101) (4,862,817) (2,417,255) (2,365,706) (2,309,492) (2,317,614) (1,853,574) (1,873,874) (1,872,515) (1,802,515) (1,732,515) (12,106,195)

EXPENDITURE
Disabled Facilities Grants 280,785 772,720 420,000 420,000 420,000 420,000 420,000 420,000 420,000 420,000 420,000 4,552,720
Purchase of bins for refuse and recycling - New Waste Strategy 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 500,000
Purchase of bins for refuse and recycling - New Waste Strategy 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 100,000
Car Park Restatements 0 62,552 50,000 0 0 262,000 0 0 0 0 0 374,552
Bedale Gateway Car Park 9,235 521,145 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 521,145
Adoptions - Electric Bollards - Thirsk & Northallerton 0 31,558 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31,558
District Council Boundary Signs 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Car Parks - P&D Machines Replacements 0 0 0 0 0 140,000 0 0 0 0 0 140,000
LED Lantern Replacement Scheme 42,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Lighting LED Lights 12,478 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St Marys Closed Churchyard - Boundary Wall repairs 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Bedale North End Cobbles 0 0 0 0 0 120,000 0 0 0 0 0 120,000
Civic Centre - Window Replacements 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 10,000
Civic Centre - Double Glazed window replacement scheme 0 12,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,000
Civic Centre - External Woodwork replacement scheme Dormers 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Civic Centre - External Woodwork replacement scheme Stairwells 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Civic Centre - Toilets Part 2 110,188 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Civic Centre - Disabled Access Doors & Ramps 7,653 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Civic Centre - UPS and Fire Suppression Replacement 8,464 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Civic Centre - Card Access system 42,870 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bedale Cycle Scheme 4,830 387,205 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 387,205
Forum - Capital Repairs 41,300 0 0 24,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24,000
All Leisure Centres - Upgrades to lockers 18,970 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gladstone GDPR compliance 5,240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leisure Centre Automatic Doors 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bedale LC - Trend Control Systems 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bedale LC - Gas Boiler Refurbishment 24,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bedale LC - CHP Unit 9,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - Improvement Scheme 2,315,276 100,000 0 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 106,000
Northallerton LC - External decorations 22,820 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - Further works 59,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - Sand Filters 17,983 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - Cold Water Storage Tank 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - Main Office Heating & Ventilation 9,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - External Glazing 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton LC - Reception desk scheme 24,993 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton AWP - Refurbishment 20,627 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stokesley LC - Trend Control Systems 6,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stokesley LC - Sub Circuit Distribution 12,265 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stokesley LC - Corridor to viewing area, underfloor pipework 7,280 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stokesley LC - re-design of reception area 600 14,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,400
Stokesley LC - Menerga Air Handling Unit 12,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stokesley LC - Viewing area 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Thirsk SP - Storage (Plant Room) 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Thirsk AWP - Refurbishment of showers 3,656 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Thirsk & Sowerby - Sports Village 54,650 645,350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 645,350
Bedale Public Art 19,975 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000
Workspaces - Health and safety aspects 11,500 6,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,500
Workspaces - Roller Shutter Doors 746 0 0 8,000 0 0 8,000 0 0 0 0 16,000

P
age 96



Workspace - Lift Works (LOLER) 0 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000
Workspaces - Air Con Refurbishments 0 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000
Workspace Leeming Bar Phase 4 360,396 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Workspaces - Evolution Car Park 77,719 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Workspaces -Springboard Car Park Resurface 525 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CCTV - Camera Replacement Programme 16,294 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton Depot - HGV Full Roof Replacement 0 45,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45,000
Northallerton Depot - Access Road resurfacing 0 0 0 35,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35,000
Northallerton Depot - Welfare Facilities Improvements 24,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton Depot Fire Alarm System 7,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton Depot Roller Shutter Doors 8,112 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Northallerton Depot External Works 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Waste and Street Scene - Telematics 0 12,050 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
Stokesley Depot - Roller Shutter Doors 5,760 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WOJH - Chimney Repair 0 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,000
Additional Parking - HLC and Civic Centre 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000
LED Lighting replacement scheme 2018 0 400,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400,000
Air Conditioning replacement 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Energy Efficiency - Buildings 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Stokesely Depot - Welfare Facilities 0 9,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,000
Northallerton Depot - Sustainability works for Bridge End House 0 21,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,000
Northallerton Depot - Sustainability works for the Depot 0 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000
Workspaces - Lighting Renewal 0 6,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,500
Workspaces - Cradt Yard repair to render 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000
Workspaces - Lumley Close door improvements 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000
Leisure - Thirsk SP & SLC Entrance Roof repair 8,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hambleton LC - Underground drainage 0 6,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,500
Stokesley LC - External Air Handling Unit 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000
Stokesley LC - Gas Boiler Refurbishment 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000
Stokesley LC - AWP improvements 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
Bedale LC - Roof Tiles Repair 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000
All Leisure Centres - Pool Plant equipment Replacement 0 49,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49,200
All Leisure Centres - Circulation Pump Replacement 0 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
Stokesley LC - Reception 0 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
Stokesley LC - Activity Room 0 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
All Leisure Centres - Energy Management 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
All Leisure Centres - Safe Car Parking 0 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
ADDITIONAL SCHEMES 0 0 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 2,700,000
TOTAL CAPITAL RECEIPTS EXPENDITURE 3,839,140 3,458,680 842,000 847,000 786,000 1,302,000 798,000 780,000 780,000 780,000 780,000 11,153,680
BALANCE ON Capital receipts reserve (1,779,961) (1,404,137) (1,575,255) (1,518,706) (1,523,492) (1,015,614) (1,055,574) (1,093,874) (1,092,515) (1,022,515) (952,515) (952,515)

P
age 97



10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 ANNEX A4

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND Yr 0 Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

INCOME
Opening Balance (2,179,059) (1,079,000) (586,113) (314,723) (1,414,723) (914,723) (400,000) (1,150,000) (550,000) 0 (750,000)
Add: Transfers from Council Taxpayers Reserve 0 0 0 (1,500,000) (1,500,000)

Add: Estimated Capital Receipts from sale of prison site (1,500,000)
Add: Estimated income from third party contributions (52,069) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2,231,128) (1,079,000) (586,113) (1,814,723) (1,414,723) (914,723) (1,900,000) (1,150,000) (550,000) (1,500,000) (750,000) (5,579,000)

EXPENDITURE
Economic Development Revenue Expenditure 442,951 240,267 21,390 0 0 261,657
Economic Development Capital Expenditure 709,177 252,620 250,000 400,000 500,000 514,723 750,000 600,000 550,000 750,000 750,000 5,317,343
TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND EXPENDITURE 1,152,128 492,887 271,390 400,000 500,000 514,723 750,000 600,000 550,000 750,000 750,000 5,579,000
BALANCE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND (1,079,000) (586,113) (314,723) (1,414,723) (914,723) (400,000) (1,150,000) (550,000) 0 (750,000) 0 0

10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 ANNEX A5

BORROWING / SURPLUS FUNDS Yr 0 Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
INCOME £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Add: Borrowing (1,100,000) (8,900,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8,900,000)

EXPENDITURE
Loan to Housing Association 0 8,800,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,800,000
BID Project 1,100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000
BALANCE ON SURPLUS FUNDS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 ANNEX A6

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME Yr 0 Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

REPAIRS AND RENEWALS FUND 150,988 41,000 80,000 36,000 65,000 96,000 60,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 522,000
COMPUTER FUND 288,290 346,230 211,840 112,000 162,000 152,000 217,000 176,000 150,000 160,000 160,000 1,847,070

CAPITAL RECIEPTS RESERVE 3,839,140 3,458,680 842,000 847,000 786,000 1,302,000 798,000 780,000 780,000 780,000 780,000 11,153,680
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 709,177 252,620 250,000 400,000 500,000 514,723 750,000 600,000 550,000 750,000 750,000 5,317,343

BORROWING SURPLUS FUNDS 1,100,000 8,900,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,900,000
BALANCE ON BORROWING / SURPLUS FUNDS 6,087,595 12,998,530 1,383,840 1,395,000 1,513,000 2,064,723 1,825,000 1,592,000 1,516,000 1,726,000 1,726,000 27,740,093

P
age 98



Capital Programme Schemes 2018/19 ANNEX B

Cabinet Member/ Responsible Officer Repairs & Renewals Fund 
Capital

Expenditure
2018/19 Only

£

Third Party
Contribution

£ 

Cost to the
Council

£

Cllr Sanderson Economy & Planning
HK Civic Centre - Internal Painting 5,000 0 5,000
HK Public lighting replacement 36,000 0 36,000

Repairs & Renewals Fund Capital Programme 2018/19 41,000 0 41,000

Cabinet Member/ Responsible Officer Computer Fund 
Capital

Expenditure
2018/19 Only

£

Third Party
Contribution

£ 

Cost to the
Council

£

Cllr Sanderson Finance
LBW ICT Improvements 265,630 0 265,630

Computer Fund Capital Programme 2018/19 265,630 0 265,630

Cabinet Member/ Responsible Officer Capital Fund
Capital

Expenditure
2018/19 Only

£

Third Party
Contribution

£ 

Cost to the
Council

£

Cllr Fortune Leisure & Environment
PS Northallerton LC - Improvement Scheme 100,000 0 100,000
PS Northallerton LC - Underground drainage 6,500 0 6,500
PS Stokesley LC - External Air Handling Unit 5,000 0 5,000
PS Stokesley LC - Gas Boiler Refurbishment 25,000 0 25,000
PS Stokesley LC _ AWP improvements 10,000 0 10,000
PS Bedale LC - Roof Tiles Repair 6,000 0 6,000
PS All Leisure Centres - Pool Plant equipment Replacement 49,200 0 49,200
PS All Leisure Centres - Circulation Pump Replacement 20,000 0 20,000
PS Stokesley LC - Reception 20,000 0 20,000
PS Stokesley LC - Activity Room 20,000 0 20,000
PS All Leisure Centres - Energy Management 10,000 0 10,000
PS All Leisure Centres - Safe Car Parking 20,000 0 20,000

Cllr Watson
PS Purchase of bins and boxes for refuse and recycling 60,000 10,000 50,000
PS Stokesley Depot Welfare 9,000 0 9,000
PS Northallerton Depot - HGV Full Roof Replacement 45,000 0 45,000
PS Bridge End House, Northallerton - Condition survey urgent repairs 21,000 0 21,000
PS Depot Darlington Rd, Northallerton - Condition survey urgent repairs 15,000 0 15,000

Cllr Webster Economy & Planning
HK Disabled Facilities Grant 500,000 480,000 20,000

Cllr Wilkinson 0
HK Lighting Improvements 6,500 0 6,500
HK Bedale Craft Yard - render 6,000 0 6,000
HK Workspace renewal scheme 6,000 0 6,000

Cllr Sanderson
HK Lighting - LED Replacement Scheme 400,000 0 400,000
HK World of James Herriot - Chimney Repair 8,000 0 8,000
HK Civic Centre/Northallerton Leisure - increased car parking provision 50,000 0 50,000
HK Air- conditioning legislative 10,000 0 10,000
HK Energy efficiency (market assessment) 10,000 0 10,000

Capital Fund Capital Programme 2018/19 1,438,200 490,000 948,200

Cabinet Member/ Responsible Officer Total Capital Programme 2018/19
Capital

Expenditure
2018/19 Only

£

Third Party
Contribution

£ 

Cost to the
Council

£

Cllr Fortune/Cllr Watson Leisure & Environment 441,700 10,000 431,700
Cllr Wilkinson/ Cllr Sanderson/Cllr Webster Economy & Planning 1,037,500 480,000 557,500

Cllr Wilkinson/Cllr Sanderson Finance 265,630 0 265,630
Total Capital Programme 2018/19 1,744,830 490,000 1,254,830

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



ANNEX ‘C’

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT - 
MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT and

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2018/19

1.0 INTRODUCTION:

1.1 Background

1.1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  The first part of the Treasury 
Management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash 
being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties 
or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return.

1.1.2 The second main function of the Treasury Management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet 
its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.   On occasion, 
when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet 
Council risk or cost objectives. 

1.1.3 CIPFA defines Treasury Management as:

“The management of the Local Authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. ”

1.2 Reporting Requirements

1.2.1 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each 
year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.  In addition quarterly 
review reports provide a regular update to Cabinet. 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report)

1.2.2 The first, and most important report covers:

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators);
 a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy (how residual capital expenditure is

charged to revenue over time);
 the Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be

organised) including treasury indicators; and
 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report
1.2.3 This will update Members with the progress of the capital position, amending prudential 

indicators as necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or 
whether any policies require revision.  In addition, this Council will receive quarterly update 
reports.

Page 101



An Annual Treasury Report
1.2.4 This provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual 

treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy.

Scrutiny
1.2.5 The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by Members before being 

recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by Cabinet, in addition to this 
scrutiny role, Audit, Governance and Standards Committee also scrutineses this report.

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19

1.3.1 The strategy for 2018/19 covers two main areas:

(a) Capital Issues
 the capital plans and the prudential indicators
 the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy

(b) Treasury Management Issues
 the current treasury position
 treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council
 prospects for interest rates
 the borrowing strategy
 policy on borrowing in advance of need
 debt rescheduling
 the investment strategy
 credit worthiness policy
 policy on use of external service providers
 Member training

1.3.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and the Department for 
Communities and Local Government Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance and 
Department for Communities and Local Government Investment guidance.

1.4 REVISED CIPFA TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL CODES 2017 AND 
OUTSTANDING CONSULTATION EXERCISES

1.4.1 At this stage it should be noted that in December 2017, CIPFA issued a revised Treasury 
Management Code of Practice and a revised Prudential Code.  These revisions have 
particularly focused on non-treasury investments and especially on the purchase of 
property with a view to generating income.  Such purchases could involve undertaking 
external borrowing to raise the cash to finance these purchases, or the use of existing cash 
balances. Both actions would affect treasury management.

1.4.2 Consequently the specific roles of the chief financial officer - Director of Finance (S151 
Officer) at this Council - have been extended, in accordance with the revised Codes, to 
include a series of new roles in respect of investment in non-treasury investments (non-
financial assets) and also the new requirement to provide a capital strategy.  Further detail 
is attached at Annex E.

Page 102



1.4.3 In addition, the revised Codes have clarified a clear separation between treasury and non-
treasury investments and also on the role of the treasury management team.  Therefore, 
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement  will focus solely on treasury, (financial), 
investments and will not include any level of detail on non-treasury investments as there is 
no specific requirement in the Codes to include such material.

1.4.4 CIPFA has issued a statement that accepts that the issue of revised codes at this late stage 
in the current 2018-19 budget cycle will make it very difficult for most authorities to fully 
implement both codes. Accordingly, full implementation is not expected until 2019-20 
across all authorities. Therefore, at this Council in due course, further information will be 
provided to Members during 2018/19 on non-treasury investments to deal with significant 
purchases, their objectives, how they have been appraised, how they have been financed, 
and what powers were used to undertake these purchases, as well as the capital strategy.

1.4.5 From 2019-20, all local authorities are required to prepare an additional report - a
Capital Strategy report - which is intended to provide the following: -

 a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of services

 an overview of how the associated risk is managed
 the implications for future financial sustainability

1.4.6 The aim of this report is to ensure that all elected members on the full council fully 
understand the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk appetite entailed by this 
Strategy  and have sufficient detail to allow all members to understand how stewardship, 
value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability will be secured.

2.0 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19 – 2020/21:

2.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity.  
The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist Members’ overview and confirm their understanding of the Capital 
Programme. 

Capital Expenditure

2.2 This prudential Indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both 
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.  Members are asked 
to approve the capital expenditure forecasts.

Capital Expenditure 2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Total 18,951,104 6,087,595 12,998,530 1,383,840 1,395,000

2.3 Other long term liabilities.  The above financing need excludes other long term liabilities, 
such as Private Finance Initiatives and leasing arrangements which already include 
borrowing instruments.  The Council has no Private Finance Initiatives or leases.

Page 103



2.4 The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of resources results in a 
funding borrowing need.  In 2018/19, borrowing may occur to support the Capital 
programme, mainly due to the loan to the local Housing Association. 

Capital 
Expenditure
£

2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Total 18,951,104 6,087,595 12,998,530 1,383,840 1,395,000
Financed by:
Capital receipts 1,235,802 2,833,010 1,370,824 358,882 366,549
Capital grants 274,406 847,606 2,008,070 400,000 400,000
Capital reserves 1,173,636 1,306,979 639,850 541,840 548,000
Revenue 67,260 0 79,786 83,118 80,451
Net financing need 
for the year 16,200,000 1,100,000 8,900,000 0 0

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
2.5 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The 

CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 
for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 
indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need.  Any capital expenditure above, which 
has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.

2.6 The CFR does not increase indefinitely as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each 
assets life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used.

2.7 For the past few years, the CFR has remained at zero as the Council has been debt free 
and has had no underlying borrowing requirement.  In 2016/17, due to the capital 
expenditure with regards to the loan to the local Housing Association and the loan to the 
Business Improvement District, the CFR is required as this is a prudent approach to the 
need to borrow.  This also provides the Council with the flexibility to use borrowing to 
support the capital programme if it chooses to do so but still allows the use of surplus 
funds.  If external borrowing is taken, consideration is given to the Treasury Management 
environment to ensure that the best option is achieved in relation to interest rates in the 
short and long term. 

2.8 The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. Private Finance Initiative schemes, 
finance leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing 
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not 
required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The Council currently has no such 
Private Finance Initiative schemes or Finance Leases.

Page 104



2.9 The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:-

2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Capital Financing Requirement
Capital Financing 
Requirement 26,200,000 27,300,000 36,200,000 36,200,000 36,200,000

Movement in the 
Capital Financing 
Requirement

16,200,000 1,100,000 8,900,000 0 0

Movement in Capital Financing Requirement represented by

Net financing need 
for the year 
(above)

16,200,000 1,100,000 8,900,000 0 0

Less Minimum 
Revenue Provision 
and other financing 
movements

0 0 0 0 0

Movement in the 
Capital Financing 
Requirement

16,200,000 1,100,000 8,900,000 0 0

Minimum Revenue provision (MRP) Policy Statement
2.10 It is a statutory requirement that the Council reports on the Minimum Revenue Position and 

explains this policy.  The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy describes that the Council is 
required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital spend each year 
(the Capital Financing Requirement) through a revenue charge known as the Minimum 
Revenue Provision – MRP.  The Council is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary 
payments if required. This is known as the Voluntary Revenue Provision - VRP.  

2.11 This Council in 2018/19 will have a Capital Financing Requirement of £36,200,000 to 
support the total capital programme, however borrowing is only likely to occur where 
insufficient surplus funds are available.

2.12 Communities of Local Government (CLG) Regulations have been issued which require the 
Full Council to approve a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement in advance of 
each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent 
provision.  The Council is recommended to approve the following Minimum Revenue 
Provision Statement:

2.13 For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008, or which in the future will be 
Supported Capital Expenditure, the Minimum Revenue Provision policy will be:

 Based on Capital Financing Requirement – Minimum Revenue Provision will be
based on the Capital Financing Requirement.  This option provides for an
approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (Capital Financing Requirement)
each year.

Page 105



2.14 From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including Private Finance Initiative and 
finance leases) the Minimum Revenue Provision policy will be:

 Asset Life Method – Minimum Revenue Provision will be based on the estimated life
of the assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction).  This option provides for a
reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s life.

2.15 Repayments included in annual Private Finance Initiative scheme or finance leases are 
applied as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), though this Council does not expect to 
have these repayments in 2018/19 or in the foreseeable future. 

2.16 The Capital Financing Requirement for the loan to the local Housing Association will be a 
maximum of £35,000,000 in 2018/19 and future years.  The agreement with the local 
Housing Association states they will make bullet repayments to the Council at years 5, 10, 
15, 20 and 25.    The bullet repayments made throughout the life of the loan will be set 
aside by the Council when received to ensure that prudent provision is made for regular 
repayment.  These regular bullet points will be earmarked and used as the Minimum 
Revenue Provision that the Council needs to make on a regular basis to reduce the Capital 
Financing Requirement.  Therefore, if a total of £35,000,000 is loaned to the local Housing 
Association by the end of 2018/19, the first time the MRP charge will be made to the 
revenue account to reduce the level of CFR will be 2020/21 and at regular intervals 
thereafter.  The Capital Financing Requirement for the Business Improvement District will 
be a maximum of £1,200,000, making the total £36,200,000, as with the loan to the Local 
Housing Association, the loan to the Business Improvement District of £1,200,000 also sets 
aside receipts received to repay the borrowing that has been incurred on an annual basis 
for the next 5 years.

Core funds and expected investment balances
2.17  The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital             

expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 
(asset sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource 
and anticipated day to day cash flow balances.  Working capital balances (Debtors and 
Creditors) shown in the table are included in ‘Other’ which is the estimated position at the 
year end; these may fluctuate during the year.  The Council will run its cash close to zero, 
therefore reducing its external borrowing costs as interest rates for investments remain at a 
low level.

 Year End Resources
£000

2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Fund balances / reserves 11,744,311 10,959,248 10,105,628 9,916,903 10,656,518
Capital receipts 2,665,698 1,779,961 1,404,137 1,575,255 1,518,706
Provisions - - - - -
Other 10,589,991 2,660,791 2,690,235 2,707,842 2,024,776
Total core funds 25,000,000 15,400,000 14,200,000 14,200,000 14,200,000
Under/over borrowing 25,000,000 15,400,000 14,200,000 14,200,000 14,200,000
Expected investments - - - - -

Page 106



Affordability Prudential Indicators
2.18 The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 

indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the impact of 
the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked to 
approve the following indicators:

2.19 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.  This indicator identifies the trend in the 
cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs) against the net revenue 
stream.

% 2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Ratio 0 0 0 0 0

2.20 The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this 
report.  The table shows that there is no ratio between the capital cost and net revenue 
stream because the borrowing which will potentially be undertaken is for the loan to the 
local Housing Association. Ultimately this will not be a cost to the Council as the agreement 
between the Council and the local Housing Association will cover the costs incurred.

3.0 BORROWING:

3.1 The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of 
the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 
organised in accordance with the the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is 
available to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy. This will involve 
both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of 
approporiate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant treasury/prudential 
indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy.

3.2 Current Portfolio Position 
3.2.1 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2017 with forward projections are  

summarised below.  The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury management 
operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  At the end of 2015/16 the 
Coucnil was debt free.  In 2016/17 borrowing occurred at £1,200,000 to support the capital 
programme as described in section 2 above. The estimated position for 2017/18 and future 
years is also reflected in the table below:  

£ 2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

External Debt
Debt at 1 April 0 1,200,000 11,900,000 22,000,000 22,000,000
Expected change in 
Debt 1,200,000 10,700,000 10,100,000 0 0

Actual gross debt at 
31 March 

1,200,000 11,900,000 22,000,000 22,000,000 22,000,000

The Capital 
Financing 
Requirement

26,200,000 27,300,000 36,200,000 36,200,000 36,200,000

Under / (over) 
borrowing 25,000,000 15,400,000 14,200,000 14,200,000 14,200,000

Page 107



3.2.2 Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the 
Council operates its activities within well defined limits.  One of these is that the Council 
needs to ensure that its gross debt, does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2018/19 and the 
following two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future 
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.      

3.2.3 The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) reports that the Council complied with this 
prudential indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in the 
budget report.

3.3 Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity
3.3.1 The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 

expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be 
lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt.  Prior to 2016/17, the Council was 
debt free and had no borrowing, however in 2016/17 £1,200,000 was taken as described in 
section 2 above.  In order to give the Council complete flexibility these limits for borrowing 
activity are always set at the beginning of each financial year.  

Operational boundary 2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Debt 29,800,000 39,000,000 39,000,000 39,000,000
Other long term liabilities 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000
Total 35,800,000 39,600,000 39,600,000 39,600,000

3.3.2 The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator represents a 
control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a limit beyond which external 
debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the 
level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term.  

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government
Act 2003.  The Government retains an option to control either the total of all Councils’
plans, or those of a specific Council, although this power has not yet been exercised.

2. The Council is asked to approve the following Authorised Limit.  This limit is set to give
the Council complete flexibility and also to encompass the maximum amount of
borrowing that could occur for the capital programme:

Authorised limit £ 2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

Debt 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
Other long term liabilities 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total 41,000,000 41,000,000 41,000,000 41,000,000

3.4 Prospects for Interest Rates and Economic Background

3.4.1 The Economic Background is attached at Annex C3 which includes the Brexit timetable and 
and economic update. 

Page 108



3.4.2 The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of their 
service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The following table
gives Link Asset Services central view.

3.4.3 As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) delivered a 0.25% increase in Bank 
Rate at its meeting on 2 November 2017. This removed the emergency cut in August 2016 
after the European Union referendum.  The Monetary Policy Committee also gave forward 
guidance that they expected to increase Bank rate only twice more by 0.25% by 2020 to 
end at 1.00%.  The Link Asset Services forecast as above includes increases in Bank Rate 
of 0.25% in November 2018, November 2019 and August 2020.

The overall longer run trend is for gilt yields and Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) rates to 
rise, albeit gently.  It has long been expected, that at some point, there would be a more 
protracted move from bonds to equities after a historic long-term trend, over about the last 
25 years, of falling bond yields. The action of central banks since the financial crash of 
2008, in implementing substantial Quantitative Easing, added further impetus to this 
downward trend in bond yields and rising bond prices.  Quantitative Easing has also 
directly led to a rise in equity values as investors searched for higher returns and took on 
riskier assets.  The sharp rise in bond yields since the US Presidential election in 
November 2016 has called into question whether the previous trend may go into reverse, 
especially now the Fed. has taken the lead in reversing monetary policy by starting, in 
October 2017, a policy of not fully reinvesting proceeds from bonds that it holds when they 
mature.  

Until 2015, monetary policy was focused on providing stimulus to economic growth but has 
since started to refocus on countering the threat of rising inflationary pressures as stronger 
economic growth becomes more firmly established. The Fed. has started raising interest 
rates and this trend is expected to continue during 2018 and 2019.  These increases will 
make holding US bonds much less attractive and cause their prices to fall, and therefore 
bond yields to rise. Rising bond yields in the US are likely to exert some upward pressure 
on bond yields in the UK and other developed economies.  However, the degree of that 
upward pressure is likely to be dampened by how strong or weak the prospects for 
economic growth and rising inflation are in each country, and on the degree of progress 
towards the reversal of monetary policy away from quantitative easing and other credit 
stimulus measures.

Annual 
Average %

Bank Rate
%

PWLB Borrowing Rates %
(including certainty rate adjustment)

5 year 10 year 25 year 50 year
Dec 2017 0.50 1.50 2.10 2.80 2.50
Mar 2018 0.50 1.60 2.20 2.90 2.60
Jun 2018 0.50 1.60 2.30 3.00 2.70
Sep 2018 0.50 1.70 2.40 3.00 2.80
Dec 2018 0.75 1.80 2.40 3.10 2.90
Mar 2019 0.75 1.80 2.50 3.10 2.90
Jun 2019 0.75 1.90 2.60 3.20 3.00
Sep 2019 0.75 1.90 2.60 3.20 3.00
Dec 2019 1.00 2.00 2.70 3.30 3.10
Mar 2020 1.00 2.10 2.70 3.40 3.20
Jun 2020 1.00 2.10 2.80 3.50 3.30
Sep 2020 1.25 2.20 2.90 3.50 3.30
Dec 2020 1.25 2.30 2.90 3.60 3.40
Mar 2021 1.25 2.30 3.00 3.60 3.40

Page 109



From time to time, gilt yields – and therefore Public Works Loan Board rates - can be 
subject to exceptional levels of volatility due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis and 
emerging market developments. Such volatility could occur at any time during the forecast 
period.

3.4.4 Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. The above forecasts (and Monetary Policy Committee decisions) will 
be liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments in 
financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially in the 
European Union, could also have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment 
earnings beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and 
political developments. 

3.4.5 The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is probably to the downside, 
particularly with the current level of uncertainty over the final terms of Brexit. 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and Public Works Loan Board rates 
currently include: 

 The Bank of England takes action too quickly over the next three years to raise Bank
Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than
we currently anticipate.

 Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle East,
which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, possibly Italy, due to its high
level of government debt, low rate of economic growth and vulnerable banking
system.

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks.

 Germany is still without an effective government after the inconclusive result of the
general election in October.  In addition, Italy is to hold a general election on 4 March
2018 and the anti European Union populist Five Star party is currently in the lead in
the polls, although it is unlikely to get a working majority on its own.  Both situations
could pose major challenges to the overall leadership and direction of the European
Union as a whole and of the individual respective countries. Hungary will hold a
general election in April 2018.

 The result of the October 2017 Austrian general election has now resulted in a
strongly anti-immigrant coalition government.  In addition, the Czech ANO party
became the largest party in the October 2017 general election on a platform of being
strongly against European Union migrant quotas and refugee policies. Both
developments could provide major impetus to other, particularly former Communist
bloc countries, to coalesce to create a major block to progress on European Union
integration and centralisation of European Union policy.  This, in turn, could spill over
into impacting the Euro, European Union financial policy and financial markets.

 Rising protectionism under President Trump

 A sharp Chinese downturn and its impact on emerging market countries

Page 110



The potential for upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and Public Works Loan 
Board rates, especially for longer term Public Works Loan rates include: -

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate
and, therefore, allows inflation pressures to build up too strongly within the UK
economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate
faster than we currently expect.

 UK inflation returning to sustained significantly higher levels causing an increase in
the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields.

 The Fed causing a sudden shock in financial markets through misjudging the pace
and strength of increases in its Fed. Funds Rate and in the pace and strength of
reversal of Quantitative Easing, which then leads to a fundamental reassessment by
investors of the relative risks of holding bonds, as opposed to equities.  This could
lead to a major flight from bonds to equities and a sharp increase in bond yields in the
US, which could then spill over into impacting bond yields around the world.

Investment and borrowing rates

 Investment returns are likely to remain low during 2018/19 but to be on a gently rising trend
over the next few years.

 Borrowing interest rates increased sharply after the result of the general election in June and
then also after the September Monetary Policy Committee meeting when financial markets
reacted by accelerating their expectations for the timing of Bank Rate increases.  Since then,
borrowing rates have eased back again somewhat.  Apart from that, there has been little
general trend in rates during the current financial year. The policy of avoiding new borrowing
by running down spare cash balances has served well over the last few years.  However,
this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future
when the Council may not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure
and/or the refinancing of maturing debt;

 There will remain a cost of carry to any new long-term borrowing that causes a temporary
increase in cash balances as this position will, most likely, incur a revenue cost – the
difference between borrowing costs and investment returns.

3.5 Borrowing Strategy 

3.5.1 In 2015/16 the Council was debt free, however in 2016/17 borrowing of £1,200,000 
occurred in line with the capital programme as described in section 2 above.  The maximum 
amount of borrowing as stated above in section 2 in line with the Capital financing 
requirement is £36,200,000. Therefore the Council may use its surplus funds to support the 
capital programme or borrow in accordance with the capital financing requirement.  If 
surplus funds are utilised raher than borrowing then this means that the capital borrowing 
needed (the Capital Financing Requirement), will not be fully funded with loan debt as cash 
supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow will be used as a temporary measure. 
This strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high.

3.5.2 If the Council does undertake borrowing then interest rates will be viewed from 1 year to 50 
years, in accordance with the interest rates available from the markets as well as the 
Governments Public Works Loans Board.  For 2018/19 interest rates span between 5 years at 
1.70%,10 at 2.30%, 25 at 3.00% or 50 years at 2.80%.  The interest rates trend is to increase 
slightly across all years as the 2018/19 year progresses.  Therefore, in the current volatile 
money market, the borrowing target rate for 2018/19 is set at 3.10%.  External borrowing will be 
considered throughout the financial year when interest rates seem most favourable.

Page 111



3.5.3 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted with 
the 2018/19 treasury operations.  The Director of Finance will monitor  interest rates in financial 
markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances:

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short term rates (e.g.
due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then
long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding
into short term borrowing will be considered.

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and short term
rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the start date and in
the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity
or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised. Most
likely, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than they are projected in
the next few years.

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate to Cabinet at the next available opportunity.

3.6 Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need

3.6.1 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit 
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be 
within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered 
carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can 
ensure the security of such funds. 

3.6.2 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal 
and subsequent reporting through the quarterly, mid-year or annual reporting mechanism. 

3.7 Debt Rescheduling

3.7.1 It is not anticipated that in 2018/19 that debt rescheduling will occur.  The Coucnil current 
only has long term debt of £1,200,000.  However, in order to cover all possibilities in the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement it should be noted that short term borrowing 
rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed interest rates, therefore, there 
may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching from long term debt to 
short term debt.  However, these savings would need to be considered in the light of the 
current treasury position and the size of the cost of debt repayment (premium charges 
would be incurred). 

3.7.2 The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include: 
 the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings;
 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;
 enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the balance

of volatility).

3.7.3 Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for making 
savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short term 
rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.  

3.7.4 All rescheduling will be reported to Cabinet, at the earliest meeting following its action.

Page 112



3.8 Municipal Bond Agency

3.8.1 It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being set up, will be 
offering loans to Local Authorities sometime in the future.  It is also hoped that the borrowing 
rates will be lower than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). 

The Council could therefore potentially make use of this new source of borrowing as and when 
appropriate to fund all or part of the borrowing required for the two previously mentioned 
schemes.  

3.9 Treasury Management Limits on Activity

3.9.1 There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are to restrain 
the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing 
the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates.  However, if these are set to be too 
restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The 
indicators are:-

 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit for
variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments;

 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the previous indicator
and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;

 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set in place to reduce the
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are
required for upper and lower limits.

3.9.2 The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits in the table 
below.  These limits take into account the potential borrowing to support the capital 
programme as previously described in section 2 above and also provide the flexibility for 
additional borrowing when overnight temporary borrowing needs to occur.  It should be 
noted that at this stage options have been left open when borrowing will occur due to the 
current volatility in the market.

Maturity Structure of interest rate borrowing 2018/19
Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 100%

12 months to 2 years 0% 100%

2 years to 5 years 0% 100%

5 years to 10 years 0% 100%

10 years to 20 years 0% 100%

20 years to 30 years 0% 100%

30 years to 40 years 0% 100%

40 years to 50 years 0% 100%

4.0 Annual Investment Strategy

4.1 Investment Policy  

4.1.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s  Guidance on Local Government 
Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in Public 
Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The 
Council’s investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, then return.

Page 113



4.1.2 In accordance with the above guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in order to minimise the 
risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a 
list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 
concentration risk.  The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the Short Term and Long 
Term Ratings.

4.1.3 Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is important to 
continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in 
relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To 
achieve this cosideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on 
market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit 
ratings. 

4.1.4 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other such 
information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny 
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

4.1.5 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Annex C1  under the 
‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set through 
the Council’s treasury management practices – schedules. 

4.1.6 With regards to counterparty limts and the amount of surplus funds to be placed with any 
one counterparty or group of counterparties, specific advice has been taken from the 
Council’s Treasury Management Advisors (Link Asset Services) due to the difficulty in 
placing surplus funds in the current economic environment.  Therefore the Counterparty 
limits are detailed as follows:

 Individual Limits – These limits will be set at 30% of total investments or £3m per
counterparty whichever is the higher.  There are three exceptions to this policy:

(a) with counterparties that are backed by the Government – Royal Bank of
Scotland, Natwest, Ulster Bank – (and therefore are more secure) there will be
a 40% limit or £5m per counterparty whichever is the higher.

(b) with the Council’s own bank - Lloyds - and associated banks in the Lloyds group
– Bank of Scotland – there will be a 40% limit or £5m per counterparty
whichever is the higher

(c) with the Debt Management Agency Deposit there will be an unlimited amount
with this organisation due to its high level of security.

It should be noted that it is expected during 2018/19, that the status of the current 
counterparties backed by the Government in (a) above may change.  If this occurs a 
report will be brought to Cabinet at the earliest opportunity with the revised limits.

 Group Limits – this policy recognises that individual counterparties (banks/financial
institutions etc), whilst being sound in themselves, may be part of a larger group.  This
brings with it added risks where parent institutions may be in difficulties.  Therefore, due
to the reduced surplus balances available for investment, the group limit will also be as
stated for the individual limits as it is important to diversify the risk to a variety of
counterparties.

4.2   Creditworthiness policy

4.2.1 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services – the 
Council’s Treasury Management Advisors.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling 
approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 

Page 114



Y Pi1 Pi2 P B O R G N/C
1 1.25 1.5 2 3 4 5 6 7

Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 2yrs Up to 1yr Up to 1yr Up to 6mths Up to 100days No Colour

Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following 
overlays: 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 Credit Default Swap spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.

4.2.2 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit Watches and credit Outlooks in a 
weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of Credit Default Swap (CDS) 
spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are used by the Council to determine 
the suggested duration for investments.  The Council will therefore use counterparties within the 
following durational bands:

 Yellow 5 years 
 Dark pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.25 
 Light pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.50
 Purple  2 years
 Blue 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks)
 Orange  1 year
 Red  6 months
 Green  100 days  
 No colour  not to be used 

4.2.3 The Link Asset Services’ creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 
primary ratings and using a risk weighted scoring system does not give undue preponderance to 
just one agency’s ratings.

4.2.4 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term rating (Fitch or 
equivalents) of  F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be occasions when the 
counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may still 
be used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings available, 
or other topical market information, to support their use.

4.2.5 All credit ratings will be monitored weekly. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all 
three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness service. 
 if a downgrade results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the

Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn
immediately.

 in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other market
data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively to it by Link Asset
Services.   Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an institution or removal
from the Council’s lending list.

4.2.6 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this Council will 
also use market data and market information, information on any external support for banks to 
help support its decision making process.

Page 115



4.3 Country Limits

4.3.1 The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from countries 
with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch (or equivalent), other than the UK 
where the Council has set no limit.  The list of countries that qualify using this AA- credit 
criteria, as at the date of this report, are shown in Annex C2.  This list will be added to, or 
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.

4.3.2 The UK sovereign rating is currently AA and following advice from Link Asset Services, the 
Council's Treasury Management Advisors, and the Council will still operate with UK 
counterparties.

4.3.3 The Council has determined that, other than the United Kingdom where no limit will applies, 
a maximum of 30% of total investments or £3.0m whichever is the lower will be invested in 
a single institution of a AAA sovereign rated country

4.3.4 In addition, this policy restricts the total of investments in foreign countries to 40% of the 
total investments.

4.4 Investment Strategy

4.4.1 In-house funds
Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow requirements 
and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 months).   

4.4.2 Investment returns expectations
 Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at  0.50% until Quarter 4 2018 and not rise 
above 1.25% by Quarter 1 2021.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:

 2017/2018  0.50%
 2018/2019  0.75%
 2019/2020  1.00%
 2020/2021  1.25%

4.4.3 The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for 
periods up to about three months during each financial year are as follows: 

 2017/18  0.40%
 2018/19  0.60%
 2019/20  0.90%
 2020/21  1.25%
 2021/22  1.50%
 2022/23  1.75%
 2023/24  2.00%
 Later years  2.75%

4.4.4 The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is currently skewed to the upside and are 
dependent on how strong Gross Domestic Product growth turns out, how quickly inflation 
pressures rise and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively.  

4.4.5 Invesment Treasury Indicator and Limit
Total principal funds invested for greater than 365 days.  These limits are set with regard to 
the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, 
and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end.

Page 116



4.4.6 The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: -

Maximum principal sums invested > 365 days
£ 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Principal sums invested > 
365 days £1,000,000 £1,000,000 £1,000,000

4.4.7 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business reserve 
instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short dated deposits 
(overnight to 100 days) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.

4.5 Investment Risk Benchmarking

4.5.1 This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance of its 
investment portfolio of 7 day, 1, 3, 6 or 12 month LIBID.

4.6 End of year investment report 
At the end of the 2017/18 financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report. 

5.0 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers and Training

5.1 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

5.1.1 The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as its external treasury 
management advisors. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management 
decisions remains with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers.  It is also recognised that there is value in 
employing external providers of treasury management services in order to acquire access 
to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their 
appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 
and documented, and subjected to regular review.

5.2 Training

5.2.1 The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with responsibility 
for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management.  This applies 
to cabinet members and members on scrutiny committee. During 2018/19, members will be 
offered training to provide an overview of treasury management and also any specific 
treasury management are they would choose.  This training can be provided by Council 
officers or by the external service provider – Link Asset Services.  The training needs of 
treasury management officers in the Council are periodically reviewed and officers have the 
opportunity to attend seminars and update services from Link Asset Services.

Page 117



ANNEX C1

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE – TMP1
CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK MANAGEMENT

- SPECIFIED AND NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS AND LIMITS

1.0 SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

1.1 All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum of 
1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable.

2.0 NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

2.1 These are any investments which do not meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A 
maximum of 100% will be held in aggregate in non-specified investment

3.0 INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS:

3.1 A variety of investment instruments will be used, subject to the credit quality of the 
institution, and depending on the type of investment made, it will fall into one of the above 
categories.

3.2 The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment vehicles 
are:

 Minimum 
credit criteria 
/ colour band

** Max % 
of total 
investmen
ts/ £ limit 
per 
institution

Max. maturity 
period

DMADF – UK Government N/A 100% 6 months

UK Government gilts UK sovereign 
rating 12 months

UK Government Treasury 
bills

UK sovereign 
rating 12 months

Bonds issued by 
multilateral development 
banks

AAA (or state 
your criteria if 
different)

6 months

Money Market Funds  
CNAV AAA 100% Liquid

Money Market Funds  
LVAV AAA Liquid

Money Market Funds  
VNAV AAA Liquid

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds
with a credit score of 1.25 

AAA 100% Liquid

Page 118



Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score of 
1.5  

AAA 100% Liquid

Local authorities N/A 100% 12 months

Term deposits with banks 
and building societies

Blue
Orange
Red
Green
No Colour

12 months
12 months
6 months
100 days

Not for use

CDs or corporate bonds  
with banks and building 
societies

Blue
Orange
Red
Green
No Colour

12 months
12 months
6 months
100 days

Not for use

Gilt funds UK sovereign 
rating 

A) – SPECIFIED

Institution / Counterparty Minimum ‘High’ Credit 
Criteria Use

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility -- In-house

Term deposits – local authorities -- In-house

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies 

Coded: Orange on Link 
Asset Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1+, Long-
term AA- Or equivalent 
rating from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s

In-house 

UK Part nationalised banks Coded: Blue on Link 
Asset Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1+, Long-
term AA- Or equivalent 
rating from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s

In-house and Fund 
Mangers

Banks part nationalised by high credit 
rated (sovereign rating) countries – 
non UK

Coded: Blue on Link 
Asset Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Long-term AAA, 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & Poors 
and Moody’s

In-house and Fund 
Mangers

Page 119



Collateralised deposit Coded: Orange on Link 
Asset Services’ Matrix /
UK Sovereign rating

In-house and Fund 
Mangers

UK Government Gilts UK Sovereign rating In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

Coded: Orange on Link 
Asset Services’ Matrix  /
Long term AAA

In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers

Bonds issued by a financial institution 
which is guaranteed by the UK 
Government

UK Sovereign rating In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers

Sovereign bond issues (other than the 
UK Government)

Coded: Orange on Link 
Asset Services’ Matrix  /
Long term AAA

In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers

Treasury Bills UK Sovereign rating Fund Managers

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): -

1. Money Market Funds (CNAV) MMF rating In-house and Fund 
Managers

    2a. Money Market Funds (LVNAV) MMF rating In-house and Fund 
Managers

    2b. Money Market Funds (VNAV) MMF rating In-house and Fund 
Managers

3. Ultra-Short Bond Funds with a
credit score of 1.25 Bond fund rating In-house and Fund 

Managers
4. Ultra-Short Bond Funds with a

credit score of 1.50 Bond fund rating In-house and Fund 
Managers

5. Bond Funds Bond fund rating In-house and Fund 
Managers

6. Gilt Funds Bond fund rating In-house and Fund 
Managers

Page 120



NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:
 A maximum of 100% can be held in aggregate in non-specified investment

1. Maturities of ANY period

Institution / Counterparty Minimum Credit 
Criteria Use

Max % of 
total 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies

Coded: red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-, 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 

In-house 100% 3-6 Months

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits

Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-, 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 

In-house 40% 1 Year

Certificates of deposits 
issued by banks and building 
societies. 

 Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-, 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s

In-house 
buy and 
hold and 
Fund 
Managers

30% 1 Year

Commercial paper other Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-, 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s

In-house 30% 1 Year

Page 121



Corporate Bonds Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-, 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers

30% 1 Year 

Floating Rate Notes:  Long-term AAA Fund 
Managers

N/A – Capital 
Expenditure

N/A – 
Capital 
Expenditure

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs)

Corporate Bond Fund
-

In house 
and Fund 
Managers

Property fund: the use of 
these investments would 
constitute capital 
expenditure

- Fund 
Managers N/A – Capital 

Expenditure

N/A – 
Capital 
Expenditure

2. Maturities in excess of 1 year

Institution / Counterparty Minimum Credit 
Criteria Use

Max % of 
total 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period

Term deposits – local 
authorities 

-- In-house 30% > 1 year

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies 

Coded: Purple 
(2yrs)) on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Short-term F1+, 
Long-term AA-
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 

In-house 30% > 1 year

Certificates of deposits 
issued by banks and 
building societies 

Coded: Purple(2yrs) 
on Link Asset 
Services’ Matrix / 
Short-term F1+, 
Long-term AA-

Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

UK Government Gilts  UK Sovereign rating In-house 
and Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

Page 122



Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

Long term  AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. 
other than the UK 
Government) 

Long term  AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

Corporate Bonds Long term  AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

Collective Investment Schemes structure as open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs)
1. Bond Funds Long-term AAA In-house 

and Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

2. Gilt Funds Long-term AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers

30% > 1 year

Page 123



ANNEX C2

APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENT
Current List as at 15 January 2018

Link Asset Services has advised that Councils should only use approved counterparties from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating determined by the Council.  This Council has 
determined that it will only use those countries with the sovereign rating of AA- or higher other than 
the UK where the Council has set no limit.  This list will be monitored at least weekly (and for 
information purposes only, includes other sovereign ratings)

Based on lowest available rating

AAA
 Australia
 Canada
 Denmark
 Germany
 Luxembourg
 Netherlands
 Norway
 Singapore
 Sweden
 Switzerland

AA+
 Finland
 Hong Kong
 U.S.A.

AA
 Abu Dhabi (UAE)
 France
 UK

AA-
 Belgium
 Qatar

Page 124



ANNEX C3

ECONOMIC BACKGROUND AND BREXIT TIMETABLE

GLOBAL OUTLOOK

World growth looks to be on an encouraging trend of stronger performance, rising earnings and 
falling levels of unemployment.  In October, the Inernational Monetary Fund upgraded its forecast 
for world growth from 3.2% to 3.6% for 2017 and 3.7% for 2018.  

In addition, inflation prospects are generally muted and it is particularly notable that wage inflation 
has been subdued despite unemployment falling to historically very low levels in the UK and US. 
This has led to many comments by economists that there appears to have been a fundamental 
shift downwards in the Phillips curve (this plots the correlation between levels of unemployment 
and inflation e.g. if the former is low the latter tends to be high).  In turn, this raises the question of 
what has caused this?  The likely answers probably lay in a combination of a shift towards flexible 
working, self-employment, falling union membership and a consequent reduction in union power 
and influence in the economy, and increasing globalisation and specialisation of individual 
countries, which has meant that labour in one country is in competition with labour in other 
countries which may be offering lower wage rates, increased productivity or a combination of the 
two. In addition, technology is probably also exerting downward pressure on wage rates and this is 
likely to grow with an accelerating movement towards automation, robots and artificial intelligence, 
leading to many repetitive tasks being taken over by machines or computers. Indeed, this is now 
being labelled as being the start of the fourth industrial revolution.

KEY RISKS

Central bank monetary policy measures

Looking back on nearly ten years since the financial crash of 2008 when liquidity suddenly dried up 
in financial markets, it can be assessed that central banks’ monetary policy measures to counter 
the sharp world recession were successful. The key monetary policy measures they used were a 
combination of lowering central interest rates and flooding financial markets with liquidity, 
particularly through unconventional means such as Quantitative Easing (QE), where central banks 
bought large amounts of central government debt and smaller sums of other debt.

The key issue now is that that period of stimulating economic recovery and warding off the threat 
of deflation is coming towards its close and a new period has already started in the US, and more 
recently in the UK, on reversing those measures i.e. by raising central rates and (for the US) 
reducing central banks’ holdings of government and other debt. These measures are now required 
in order to stop the trend of an on-going reduction in spare capacity in the economy, and of 
unemployment falling to such low levels that the re-emergence of inflation is viewed as a major 
risk. It is, therefore, crucial that central banks get their timing right and do not cause shocks to 
market expectations that could destabilise financial markets. In particular, a key risk is that 
because Quantitative Easing driven purchases of bonds drove up the price of government debt, 
and therefore caused a sharp drop in income yields, this then also encouraged investors into a 
search for yield and into investing in riskier assets such as equities. This resulted in bond markets 
and equity market prices both rising to historically high valuation levels simultaneously. This, 
therefore, makes both asset categories vulnerable to a sharp correction. It is important, therefore, 
that central banks only gradually unwind their holdings of bonds in order to prevent destabilising 
the financial markets. It is also likely that the timeframe for central banks unwinding their holdings 
of Quantitative Easing debt purchases will be over several years. They need to balance their timing 
to neither squash economic recovery by taking too rapid and too strong action, or, alternatively, let 
inflation run away by taking action that was too slow and/or too weak. The potential for central 
banks to get this timing and strength of action wrong are now key risks.  

Page 125



There is also a potential key question over whether economic growth has become too dependent 
on strong central bank stimulus and whether it will maintain its momentum against a backdrop of 
rising interest rates and the reversal of Quantitative Easing. In the UK, a key vulnerability is the low 
level of productivity growth, which may be the main driver for increases in wages; and decreasing 
consumer disposable income, which is important in the context of consumer expenditure primarily 
underpinning UK Gross Domestic Product growth.  

A further question that has come to the fore is whether an inflation target for central banks of 2%, 
is now realistic given the shift down in inflation pressures from internally generated inflation, (i.e. 
wage inflation feeding through into the national economy), given the above mentioned shift down in 
the Phillips curve. 

 Some economists favour a shift to a lower inflation target of 1% to emphasise the need to
keep the lid on inflation.  Alternatively, it is possible that a central bank could simply ‘look
through’ tepid wage inflation, (i.e. ignore the overall 2% inflation target), in order to take
action in raising rates sooner than might otherwise be expected.

 However, other economists would argue for a shift UP in the inflation target to 3% in order
to ensure that central banks place the emphasis on maintaining economic growth through
adopting a slower pace of withdrawal of stimulus.

 In addition, there is a strong argument that central banks should target financial market
stability. As mentioned previously, bond markets and equity markets could be vulnerable to
a sharp correction. There has been much commentary, that since 2008, Quantitative
Easing has caused massive distortions, imbalances and bubbles in asset prices, both
financial and non-financial. Consequently, there are widespread concerns at the potential
for such bubbles to be burst by exuberant central bank action. On the other hand, too slow
or weak action would allow these imbalances and distortions to continue or to even inflate
them further.

 Consumer debt levels are also at historically high levels due to the prolonged period of low
cost of borrowing since the financial crash. In turn, this cheap borrowing has meant that
other non-financial asset prices, particularly house prices, have been driven up to very high
levels, especially compared to income levels. Any sharp downturn in the availability of
credit, or increase in the cost of credit, could potentially destabilise the housing market and
generate a sharp downturn in house prices.  This could then have a destabilising effect on
consumer confidence, consumer expenditure and Gross Domestic Product growth.
However, no central bank would accept that it ought to have responsibility for specifically
targeting house prices.

UK 

After the UK surprised on the upside with strong economic growth in 2016, growth in 2017 has 
been disappointingly weak; quarter 1 came in at only +0.3% (+1.8% y/y),  quarter 2 was +0.3% 
(+1.5% y/y) and quarter 3 was +0.4% (+1.5% y/y).  The main reason for this has been the sharp 
increase in inflation, caused by the devaluation of sterling after the European Union referendum, 
feeding increases in the cost of imports into the economy.  This has caused, in turn, a reduction in 
consumer disposable income and spending power and so the services sector of the economy, 
accounting for around 80% of Gross Domestic Product, has seen weak growth as consumers cut 
back on their expenditure. However, more recently there have been encouraging statistics from the 
manufacturing sector which is seeing strong growth, particularly as a result of increased demand 
for exports. It has helped that growth in the European Union, our main trading partner, has 
improved significantly over the last year while robust world growth has also been supportive.  
However, this sector only accounts for around 10% of Gross Domestic Product so expansion in 
this sector will have a much more muted effect on the overall Gross Domestic Product growth 
figure for the UK economy as a whole.

While the Bank of England is expected to give forward guidance to prepare financial markets for 
gradual changes in policy, the Monetary Policy Committee, (MPC), meeting of 14 September 2017 
managed to shock financial markets and forecasters by suddenly switching to a much more 
aggressive tone in terms of its words around warning that Bank Rate will need to rise soon. The 
Bank of England Inflation Reports during 2017 have clearly flagged up that it expected Consumer 

Page 126



Price Index inflation to peak at just under 3% in 2017, before falling back to near to its target rate of 
2% in two years’ time. The Bank revised its forecast for the peak to just over 3% at the 14 
September meeting. (Inflation actually came in at 3.1% in November so that may prove now to be 
the peak.)  This marginal revision in the Bank’s forecast can hardly justify why the Monetary Policy 
Committee became so aggressive with its wording; rather, the focus was on an emerging view that 
with unemployment having already fallen to only 4.3%, the lowest level since 1975, and 
improvements in productivity being so weak, that the amount of spare capacity in the economy 
was significantly diminishing towards a point at which they now needed to take action.  In addition, 
the Monetary Policy Committee took a more tolerant view of low wage inflation as this now looks 
like a common factor in nearly all western economies as a result of automation and globalisation. 
However, the Bank was also concerned that the withdrawal of the UK from the European Union 
would effectively lead to a decrease in such globalisation pressures in the UK, and so this would 
cause additional inflationary pressure over the next few years.

At Its 2 November meeting, the Monetary Policy Committee duly delivered a 0.25% increase in 
Bank Rate. It also gave forward guidance that they expected to increase Bank Rate only twice 
more in the next three years to reach 1.0% by 2020.  This is, therefore, not quite the ‘one and 
done’ scenario but is, nevertheless, a very relaxed rate of increase prediction in Bank Rate in line 
with previous statements that Bank Rate would only go up very gradually and to a limited extent.

However, some forecasters are flagging up that they expect growth to accelerate significantly 
towards the end of 2017 and then into 2018. This view is based primarily on the coming fall in 
inflation, (as the effect of the effective devaluation of sterling after the European Union referendum 
drops out of the Consumer Price Index statistics), which will bring to an end the negative impact on 
consumer spending power.  In addition, a strong export performance will compensate for weak 
services sector growth.  If this scenario was indeed to materialise, then the Monetary Policy 
Committee would be likely to accelerate its pace of increases in Bank Rate during 2018 and 
onwards. 

It is also worth noting the contradiction within the Bank of England between action in 2016 and in 
2017 by two of its committees. After the shock result of the European Union referendum, the 
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted in August 2016 for emergency action to cut Bank Rate 
from 0.50% to 0.25%, restarting £70bn of Quantitative Easing purchases, and also providing UK 
banks with £100bn of cheap financing. The aim of this was to lower borrowing costs, stimulate 
demand for borrowing and thereby increase expenditure and demand in the economy. The 
Monetary Policy Committee felt this was necessary in order to ward off their expectation that there 
would be a sharp slowdown in economic growth.  Instead, the economy grew robustly, although 
the Governor of the Bank of England strongly maintained that this was because the Monetary 
Policy Committee took that action. However, other commentators regard this emergency action by 
the Monetary Policy Committee as being proven by events to be a mistake.  Then in 2017, we had 
the Financial Policy Committee (FPC) of the Bank of England taking action in June and September 
over its concerns that cheap borrowing rates, and easy availability of consumer credit, had resulted 
in too rapid a rate of growth in consumer borrowing and in the size of total borrowing, especially of 
unsecured borrowing.  It, therefore, took punitive action to clamp down on the ability of the main 
banks to extend such credit!  Indeed, a Price Waterhouse Coopers report in October 2017 warned 
that credit card, car and personal loans and student debt will hit the equivalent of an average of 
£12,500 per household by 2020.  However, averages belie wide variations in levels of debt with 
much higher exposure being biased towards younger people, especially the 25 -34 year old band, 
reflecting their lower levels of real income and asset ownership.

One key area of risk is that consumers may have become used to cheap rates since 2008 for 
borrowing, especially for mortgages.  It is a major concern that some consumers may have over 
extended their borrowing and have become complacent about interest rates going up after Bank 
Rate had been unchanged at 0.50% since March 2009 until falling further to 0.25% in August 
2016. This is why forward guidance from the Bank of England continues to emphasise slow and 
gradual increases in Bank Rate in the coming years.  However, consumer borrowing is a 
particularly vulnerable area in terms of the Monetary Policy Committee getting the pace and 

Page 127



strength of Bank Rate increases right - without causing a sudden shock to consumer demand, 
confidence and thereby to the pace of economic growth.

Moreover, while there is so much uncertainty around the Brexit negotiations, consumer confidence, 
and business confidence to spend on investing, it is far too early to be confident about how the 
next two to three years will actually pan out.

Euro Zone

Economic growth in the eurozone (EZ), (the UK’s biggest trading partner), had been lack lustre for 
several years after the financial crisis despite the European Central Bank eventually cutting its 
main rate to -0.4% and embarking on a massive programme of Quantitative Easing.  However, 
growth picked up in 2016 and has now gathered substantial strength and momentum thanks to this 
stimulus.  Gross Domestic Product growth was 0.6% in quarter 1 (2.1% y/y), 0.7% in quarter 2 
(2.4% y/y) and +0.6% in quarter 3 (2.6% y/y).  However, despite providing massive monetary 
stimulus, the European Central Bank is still struggling to get inflation up to its 2% target and in 
November inflation was 1.5%. It is therefore unlikely to start on an upswing in rates until possibly 
2019. It has, however, announced that it will slow down its monthly Quantitative Easing purchases 
of debt from €60bn to €30bn from January 2018 and continue to at least September 2018.  

USA

Growth in the American economy was notably erratic and volatile in 2015 and 2016.  2017 is 
following that path again with quarter 1 coming in at only 1.2% but quarter 2 rebounding to 3.1% 
and quarter 3 coming in at 3.2%.  Unemployment in the US has also fallen to the lowest level for 
many years, reaching 4.1%, while wage inflation pressures, and inflationary pressures in general, 
have been building. The Fed has started on a gradual upswing in rates with four increases in all 
and four increases since December 2016; the latest rise was in December 2017 and lifted the 
central rate to 1.25 – 1.50%. There could then be another four increases in 2018. At its September 
meeting, the Fed said it would start in October to gradually unwind its $4.5 trillion balance sheet 
holdings of bonds and mortgage backed securities by reducing its reinvestment of maturing 
holdings.

CHINA 

Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated rounds of central 
bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing. Major progress still needs to be made to 
eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock of unsold property, and to address the level of 
non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems.

JAPAN

Gross Domestic Product growth has been gradually improving during 2017 to reach an annual 
figure of 2.1% in quarter 3.  However, it is still struggling to get inflation up to its target of 2%, 
despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform 
of the economy.

Brexit timetable and process

 March 2017: UK government notifies the European Council of its intention to leave under
the Treaty on European Union Article 50

 March 2019: initial two-year negotiation period on the terms of exit.  In her Florence speech
in September 2017, the Prime Minister proposed a two year transitional period after March
2019.

 UK continues as a full European Union member until March 2019 with access to the single
market and tariff free trade between the European Union and UK. Different sectors of the
UK economy will leave the single market and tariff free trade at different times during the
two year transitional period.

Page 128



 The UK and European Union would attempt to negotiate, among other agreements, a bi-
lateral trade agreement over that period.

 The UK would aim for a negotiated agreed withdrawal from the European Union, although
the UK could also exit without any such agreements in the event of a breakdown of
negotiations.

 If the UK exits without an agreed deal with the European Union, World Trade Organisation
rules and tariffs could apply to trade between the UK and European Union - but this is not
certain.

 On full exit from the European Union: the UK parliament would repeal the 1972 European
Communities Act.

 The UK will then no longer participate in matters reserved for European Union members,
such as changes to the European Union’s budget, voting allocations and policies.

Page 129



ANNEX ‘D’

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION

APPENDIX: Treasury management scheme of delegation

(i) Full Council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities
 approval of annual strategy and annual outturn

(ii) Cabinet
 approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury management policy

statement and treasury management practices (recommendations to Council)
 budget consideration and approval (recommendations to Council)
 approval of the division of responsibilities
 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations
 receiving annual treasury management strategy, annual outturn, quarterly reports and also

adhoc reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities
 reviewing and scrutinising the treasury management policy and procedures and making

recommendations to full Council.

(iii) Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
 reviewing and scrutinising the treasury management policy and procedures and making

recommendations to Cabinet.

Page 130



ANNEX ‘E’

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER

The S151 (responsible) officer 
 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing the

same regularly, and monitoring compliance;
 submitting regular treasury management policy reports;
 submitting budgets and budget variations;
 receiving and reviewing management information reports;
 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;
 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective

division of respo3nsibilities within the treasury management function;
 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;
 recommending the appointment of external service providers.
 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, non-

financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe (to be
determined in accordance with local priorities.  This is not included for the 2018/19 Budget
round due to the late publication of the CIPFA code.

 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the long
term and provides value for money – this will occur in 2019/20.

 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the Council

 ensure that the Council has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on non-
financial assets and their financing

 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the Council does not undertake a
level of investing which exposes the Council to an excessive level of risk compared to its
financial resources

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring and
ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees, this will be
developed in due course due to the late publication of the CIPFA code for the 2018/19
budget round.

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures taken
on by the Council

 ensuring that the Council has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided, to
carry out the above

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non treasury
investments will be carried out and managed.

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
  27 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: BREXIT UPDATE ON IMPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES 

All Wards 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with the current position on local 

authorities of the UK’s decision to leave the European Union. 
 
1.2 Attach at Annex A is ‘Brexit update for local authorities’ where the information is based on 

the latest update from the Local Government Association Brexit articles. 
 
1.3  The briefing is based on the recent speeches provided by cabinet Ministers and Theresa 

May – Prime Minister - during February and March 2018.  It covers: 
 1. Introduction 
2. Regulation 
3. Brexit legislation 
4. Effect of Brexit on the economy 
5. Housing, Communities and Local Government Select Committee: 

• Replacement of EU funding streams  
• Changes in the EU workforce  
• Representation of local government in the Brexit negotiations and beyond  

6. Commentary on the select committee’s inquiry, Key Challenges and Local 
Government’s perspective: 
• Impact of Brexit on different parts of the country  
• Workforce 
• Devolution and powers  
• Brexit: Opportunity or threat  

 
 1.4  The process of exiting the European Union is ongoing and further implications will become 

apparent in due course over this financial year.  The effect of Brexit on the UK is still 
unknown and the implications on local government finances will become clearer over time 
and this Committee will be update accordingly. 

 
2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with approving the recommendation.   
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members note the report. 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (s151 Officer) 
 
Background papers:  None  
Author ref:   LBW 
Contact:   Louise Branford-White  
    Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767024 

Page 133

Agenda Item 9



           Annex A 

BREXIT UPDATE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 At the end of February 2018 and beginning of March 2018 there have been a number of 
‘major’ brexit speeches – from a succession of government ministers and then from Jeremy 
Corbyn and finally from Theresa May. 

 
1.2 Theresa May’s Mansion House speech focused on five tests the Prime Minister said must 

be met as part of any Brexit deal: 
1. Respecting the referendum 
2. Being an agreement that endures 
3. Protecting jobs and security 
4. Being consistent with being an open, outward-looking European democracy  
5. Strengthening the Union  

 
1.3 It was more detailed than her previous brexit speeches, with some commentators saying it 

took a more realistic approach to several issues. 
 
1.4  The information for this update is based on the latest update from the Local Government 

Association Brexit articles. 
 
2.0 Regulation 
 
2.1 On regulation, she said that “UK and EU regulatory standards will remain substantially 

similar in the future” for goods and that the UK will seek to remain part of some EU 
agencies, whilst recognising that this will involve some role for the European Court of 
Justice post-Brexit”. 

 
2.2 The regulatory alignment did not necessarily apply to services – “We have the opportunity 

to break new ground with a broader agreement than ever before” but also recognising “that 
certain aspects of trade in services are intrinsically linked to the single market and therefore 
our market access in these areas will need to be different. 

 
2.3 She insisted the UK would be leaving the EU customs union, but called for a new 

agreement that would secure “as frictionless a border as possible.  She argued for two 
potential alternatives: a “customs partnership” in which the UK would mirror EU 
requirements on imports at its borders; and a “highly streamlined customs arrangement” 
using technology to minimise friction on the border. 

 
2.4 The customs union has become the key issue of the moment. A customs union removes 

tariffs between countries and cuts down on administrative burdens as goods move across 
borders. Members of a customs union impose a uniform system of tariffs on goods coming 
into the union as a whole. So, while there are no taxes on goods travelling between 
members of the union, there is uniformity of external taxation. 

 
3.0 Brexit legislation 
 
3.1 European Union (Withdrawal) Bill - The final day of the second reading in the Lords was on 

31 January 2018. The committee stage – line by line examination of the Bill – began on 21 
February 2018. The Lords on 5 March 2018 debated complex issues around the future 
relationship between EU law and UK law, the treatment and influence of EU law after exit 
day and the future role of the Charter of Fundamental Rights. 

 
3.2 Currently some commentators believe that ‘all the signs are that the Lords, where there is a 

clear majority for remain, will go as far as they can to amend the bill’.  The first stages of the 

Page 134



Bill in the Lords are, of course, only the beginning of a much longer process. There is the 
possibility, commentators say, that the government will be defeated in the Lords on major 
issues, such as the membership of the customs union and on a second referendum. But 
these amendments may not be put down immediately and the report stage in the Lords 
could run for a long time yet. 

 
3.3 There will be other EU brexit legislation going through at the same time – and not just bills 

but also a massive amount of statutory instruments (around 1000).  These will be monitored 
for implications to local government 

 
4.0 Effect of Brexit on the economy 
 
4.1 Figures from the government’s Brexit impact assessment are showing how all areas of the 

UK would suffer economically under three Brexit scenarios were made public, when John 
Bercow – speaker of the House of Commons - ordered its release to MPs after Labour won 
a Commons vote on the issue. 

 
 4.2 The report shows what officials think would happen to the economy if  

1. the UK left the EU but stayed in the single market,  
2. it got a trade deal with the EU or  
3. there was no trade deal. 

In all circumstances economic growth over the next 15 years would be less than if the UK 
had remained in the EU. 

 
4.3 The government claims the figures are misleading because officials have not modelled the 

bespoke trade deal it hopes to achieve, – a government spokesperson said: “This 
document does not represent government policy and does not consider the outcome we 
are seeking in the negotiations. As ministers clearly set out in the House, this is provisional 
internal analysis, part of a broad ongoing programme of analysis, and further work is in 
progress”. 

 
4.4 According to the findings the North East of England and West Midlands will sustain the 

biggest hit to economic growth from brexit whilst London will take the least damage. 
 
4.5 Regional economic growth in Northern Ireland is projected to fall by 12 per cent in a “no 

deal” scenario if the UK ends up trading on World Trade Organisation terms, the document 
says. A free trade agreement would see growth in Northern Ireland fall by eight per cent 
and by two per cent if the UK stayed in the single market and customs union. 

 
4.6 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) reported on a one-off brexit 

discussion convened by CIPFA in Bristol that the South West could be hit harder than other 
parts of England when the UK leaves the EU. 

 
4.7 A nationwide survey of all council leaders and local authority chief executives in county, 

district, unitary, metropolitan and London borough councils found 61 per cent believed 
brexit would have a negative or very negative impact on their regions. The survey by the 
New Local Government Network found only 12 per cent of 185 respondents believed it 
would have a positive effect on their economies, while 26 per cent felt the impact of leaving 
the EU would be neutral. 

 

Page 135



5.0 Housing, Communities and Local Government Select Committee 
 
5.1 Housing, Communities and Local Government Select Committee is carrying out an inquiry 

into brexit and local government.  The Chair, Clive Betts, wrote to Sajid Javid - Secretary of 
State for Housing, Communities and Local Government - setting out the main concerns of 
the committee listed below and the Secretary of State responded to Clive Betts late in 
January: 

1. replacement of EU funding streams 
2. changes in the EU workforce 
3. representation of local government in the Brexit negotiations and beyond 

 
5.2 Replacement of EU funding streams - ‘We will create a simpler fund, which is easier to 

access for local areas. As announced in the Industrial Strategy, Government committed to 
consult publicly on the detailed design of the fund this year.’ 

 
5.3 Changes in the EU workforce - ‘The Migration Advisory Committee (MAC) has been 

commissioned by Government to consider the impacts of EU Exit on the UK labour market, 
and how to align the UK’s immigration system with a modem Industrial Strategy. The 
Committee will consider a range of options to address any skills shortages arising from EU 
Exit and will report back to Government by September 2018. In addition, the Government 
will be consulting on the Industrial Strategy later this year. 

 
5.4 Representation of local government in the Brexit negotiations and beyond - ‘On the 

subject of leaving the EU, my department has undertaken direct engagement with local 
authorities and stakeholders across the country. I would welcome the views of the 
Committee on how Government can engage with local government and other stakeholders 
to best effect, to ensure the voice of every region is heard in the negotiations’.  He also 
mentioned the Committee of the Regions: ‘Government is committed to conducting further 
detailed conversations with the four local government associations about how the 
consultative role of the Committee of the Regions may be replicated, in a non-statutory 
way, domestically. It is believed this will complement the wide ranging domestic processes 
and procedures the Government already has for consulting local government when 
developing new policies or legislation which will impact them’. 

 
5.5 Local Government Association will be publishing a briefing on the final report from the 

select committee and members of Audit, Governance & Standards Committee will be 
updated on this in due course. 

 
6.0 Commentary on the select committee’s inquiry, Key Challenges and Local 

Government’s perspective 
 
6.1 Introduction - Commentary on the select committee’s inquiry has already underlined the 

key challenges for local government of brexit. The sector has continually demanded a voice 
at the table – has it got one? Jessie Hamshar’s, Service Director, Cornwall County Council 
answer when giving oral evidence at the inquiry seems to be the view of the sector as a 
whole: 

 
‘Local government was promised a seat at the table. It is not clear even where the table is, 
never mind what the seat is. If you look at the five committees that have been set up, even 
at a ministerial level the DCLG Secretary of State is represented at only one of them, and it 
is the committee that is looking at the day-to-day issues that arise. It is not one of the 
negotiating table committees’. 

 
6.2 The brexit survey by the New Local Government Network (NLGN) also uncovered 

dissatisfaction with the level of support and engagement that councils are receiving from 
central government over Brexit. Only four per cent said they were receiving adequate 
support, while 68 per cent thought it was insufficient. 

 

Page 136



6.3 EU funding - The select committee inquiry has already underlined the key concerns of the 
sector.  While the Conservatives’ 2017 election manifesto included a pledge to create a UK 
“shared prosperity fund” to replace EU regional aid, little detailed information has been 
given about how this funding would be allocated. The future of the structural and regional 
funds is one of the most important to local authorities and what kind of arrangements will be 
made for regional funds once we leave the EU. EU structural funds support economic 
development across EU countries and their constituent regions. Between 2014-2020 the 
UK is set to receive €10.9 billion in European Regional Development and European Social 
Funds (hereafter ‘structural funds’). 

 
6.4 Witnesses highlighted the uncertainty faced by many councils, such as this comment from 

Professor Tony Travers - Director of the Institute of Public Affairs at the London School of 
Economics & Political Science: 
“The complex question is knowing how whatever follows will operate—it is all 
hypothetical—in the real world of UK public finance. A new fund may be set up, and will be 
set up according to the Government, but the question is, how would it operate? Would it 
replicate what was done before?” 

 
6.5 Impact of Brexit on different parts of the country - Witnesses also highlighted the need 

for greater understanding of the impact of brexit on different parts of the country – which 
according to Core Cities requires an analysis that provides a sector make-up, strengths and 
assets of different places. This is, of course, extremely challenging at this stage where the 
negotiations over the future trading relationships with the EU have barely begun. But it will 
become increasingly important for the local government sector and individual councils and 
groups of councils to have access to the ‘table’. 

 
6.6 Councils and partners in the voluntary sector will want reassurance that the shared 

prosperity fund continues to support the groups and individuals that have been supported 
through the European Social Fund – those furthest from the labour market for example. 

 
6.7 The uncertainties over EU funding are exacerbated by the growing pressures on 

mainstream local government funding. This is particularly the case within the context of the 
changes to business rates and local authorities relying more on them from 2020/21. 

 
6.8 Workforce - The issues around the workforce, migration and skills are also of significant 

importance to local authorities. Core Cities has called for “continued investment in local 
workforce skills (as) essential to minimise the risks of skills shortages, in particular within 
sectors more at risk of losing migrant labour, for example hospitality and food, through a 
more devolved skills and employment policy”. 

 
6.9 Core Cities point out that if EU migration was to be restricted, the impact would vary greatly 

in different areas and sectors. Social care is of particular concern – only two per cent of the 
workforce in the north-east come from an EU background, whereas it is well over ten per 
cent in London: ‘We are not certain yet what will happen to existing EU citizens working 
here, though it is likely they will be able to remain, but the impact on the future workforce 
and of EU workers moving home are not clear. How sectors like social care and 
construction will deal with this is increasingly a crucial question for local authorities, Local 
Enterprise Partnerships (LEP’s) and businesses’. 

 
6.10 Devolution and powers - What might seem more esoteric questions are those focused on 

devolution and powers, such as how many laws returned to the UK will be devolved to local 
government. These issues, however, are critical ones for local authorities and sub national 
groups. Who decides and what is the process for decisions to be made? 

 
6.11 Helen Dickinson, Assistant Chief Executive, Newcastle City Council, said this in the inquiry 

session – ‘the general question of transferring EU legislation into UK law raises three 
issues for us in local government:  

Page 137



1. the impact that the risk of ambiguity in the transitional phase could have on us; 2. 
the flexibility in how the legislation is transferred; and 
3. the capacity and resources to prepare.’ 

 
6.12 The Centre for Cities in their written evidence suggested that there is ‘a unique and 

powerful opportunity for the UK Government  to reinvigorate our democracy, particularly 
through increased devolution. Devolution is a process, not an outcome but it is an important 
factor in improving the performance of cities. For example, cities with greater local freedom 
also tend to be more competitive. European cities often tend to have greater freedoms and 
powers, so this leaves the UK’s cities in a vulnerable position as we approach Brexit. 

 
6.13 Ultimately, this means cities must have far greater local financial autonomy, including 

retaining more of the taxation raised within them, as happens to varying degrees across the 
EU, the USA and throughout the developed world. It’s time to think big about our global 
future, but that means also thinking big about our local future: the ‘local UK’ on which our 
international success depends. Greater devolution of power and resource to places and 
people across the UK is urgently required, and it is up to local and national governments to 
work out how to deliver it. At a time when people are demanding more control, this is too 
important an issue to be overlooked’. 

 
6.14 Brexit: Opportunity or threat - depending on your perspective, Brexit can be seen as a 

huge threat to local government and communities or as a potential major opportunity; or 
both. 

 
6.15 For example, the way structural funds are distributed now is hardly ideal. Why shouldn’t  

the decisions about any future regional funding be devolved? But even if the answer is they 
should be devolved the question is how. What role would there be for the new combined 
authorities and mayors and for those areas which haven’t got these new arrangements? 
How would a new system fit with reforms to local government finance? 

 
6.16 And how can devolution and decentralisation be strengthened when there will be a need for 

answers in a tight timescale and when the picture is fragmented and uncertain even without 
brexit? 

 
6.17 The speeches from Theresa May and Jeremy Corbyn have to some extent clarified where 

the parties stand on critical issues such as the customs union, but local government and 
the devolved administrations are still faced with huge uncertainties. Local government is 
starting to be more pro active – for example a group of UK city leaders, along with 
EuroCities, recently met with Michel Barnier – the European Chief Negotiator and Guy 
Verhofstadt - the European Parliament’s Brexit co-ordinator - at the European 
Commission’s Headquarters. 

 
6.18 The sector has close relationships with the EU – brexit doesn’t have to mean those 

relationships need to be broken. As Core Cities underlined in their submission to the select 
committee inquiry those relationships transcend national boundaries: 

 
“Global economies are interlinked flows of trade, commerce and people between cities, 
which in turn drive their national economies. Urban policy in the UK has so far failed to 
grasp this reality, with the result that, despite some good progress on devolution, we are 
totally out of step with the rest of the world, where increasingly power is held locally and not 
by central government” 

 
6.19 Further update reports on Brexit will be provided to the Audit, Government & Standards 

Committee as more information is available and the implications on local government 
develop. 

 

Page 138



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
  23 March 2018 
 
From: Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
 
Subject: AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE - REPORT 

PROGRAMME 2018/19 
 

All Wards 
 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to identify those reports which the Committee wishes to 

receive on a structured basis. 
 
1.2 The Committee meets four times per year and with this in mind, and based upon the work 

of the Committee since its inception, Annex ‘A’ is a suggested programme of reports that 
the Committee could consider.  This would not, of course, prevent the Committee from 
considering ad hoc reports on other matters within the terms of reference for the 
Committee. 

 
2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with approval of this report.  The report will ensure that the 

Committee receives reports in a timely manner on those issues that are key to the 
Committee’s terms of reference.  Approval of a programme of reports is considered as best 
practice and will enable the work of the Committee to be spread out over the next financial 
year in a structured way. 

 
2.2 The risk of not approving the report is that issues of relevance are not brought to the 

Committee’s attention in a timely manner. 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members approve the Report Programme set out at Annex ‘A’. 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER) 
 
Background papers:  None  
 
Author ref:   LB-W 
 
Contact:   Louise Branford-White 
    Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767024 
  

Page 139

Agenda Item 10



REPORT PROGRAMME FOR 
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 2018/19 

 
 

 
JULY - 1ST QUARTER 
  
1. RIPA Update 
2. Annual Internal Audit Report 2017/18 
3. Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18 
4. Annual Report to Cabinet on the Committee’s Activities for 2017/18 
5. Annual Report on Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption for 2017/18 
6. Statutory Auditor – Quarterly Update 
7. Annual Review of the Audit Vision and Charter 
8. Politically Restricted Posts 
9. Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 
10. Statutory Auditor – Annual Audit Letter – Accounting and Internal Control Systems 2017/18 
  

  
 

OCTOBER - 2ND QUARTER 
  
1. RIPA Update and Policy Amendment 
2. Internal Audit Q1 Report 2018/19 
3. Annual Review of Risk Management Strategy (Including a Review of the Process, the Policy 

Statement and the Risk Management Guidance Manual) 
4. Annual Review of Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference 
5. Statutory Auditor – Quarterly Update  
6. Risk Register – Annual Report  
7. Statutory Auditor – Annual Audit & Inspection Letter 2017/18 

 
 

  
JANUARY - 3RD QUARTER 
  
1. RIPA Update and Annual Review of Policy Statement 
2. Internal Audit Q2+ Report 2018/19 
3. Statutory Auditor – Quarterly Update 
4. Statutory Auditor – Annual Grant Claims and Returns 2017/18 
 
 
 
MARCH - 4TH QUARTER 
  
1. RIPA Update 
2. Internal Audit Q3+ Report 2018/19 
3. Statutory Auditor – Quarterly Update 
4. Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 
5. Reporting Programme for 2019/20 
6. Review of Annual Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 

Page 140


	Agenda
	3 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act - Review of Activity
	4 Internal Audit Third Progress Report 2017/18
	270318 Int Audit Progress Report Q3
	Contact: Stuart Cutts; Audit Manager; Veritau North Yorkshire
	22TUStuart.Cutts@veritau.co.ukU22T

	270318 Int Audit Progress Report Q3 Annex
	Background
	Internal Audit work completed
	Table of 2017/18 audit assignments to 28 February 2018    Appendix A

	Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit.
	Our overall audit opinion is based on 5 grades of opinion, as set out below.
	Overall, very good management of risk. An effective control environment appears to be in operation.
	High Assurance
	Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified.  An effective control environment is in operation but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified.
	Substantial Assurance
	Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified.  An acceptable control environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made.
	Reasonable Assurance 
	Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major improvements required before an effective control environment will be in operation.
	Limited Assurance
	Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed.  A number of key areas require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse.
	No Assurance
	A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention by management
	Priority 1
	A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be addressed by management.
	Priority 2
	The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.
	Priority 3


	5 Statutory Auditor - Quarterly Update: Audit Plan
	270318 Stat Auditor Update and Audit Plan
	270318 Stat Auditor Update Annex A - Audit Planning Board Report Final 
	270318 Stat Auditor Update Annex B - EY - LA Committee Briefing

	6 Statutory Auditor - Annual Grant Claims and Returns 2016/17
	270318 Statutory Auditor Annual Grant Claims and Returns
	270318 Statutory Auditor Annual Grant Claims and Returns Annex A

	7 Veritau Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and Information Governance  Plans 2018/19
	270318 Item 7
	1.1 The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  In accordance with those standards and the Council’s Audit Charter, internal audit is required to prepare an audit plan on at least an annual basis.  As...
	1.2 In addition to Internal Audit, Veritau now provides the Council with specialist Counter Fraud and Information Governance services.  For transparency and information purposes we have now included these services alongside the audit plan within this ...
	1.3 The purpose of this report is to present the proposed Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and Information Governance plans for 2018/19.
	3.0 ULINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
	Contact: Stuart Cutts; Audit Manager; Veritau North Yorkshire
	22TUStuart.Cutts@veritau.co.ukU22T
	Jonathan Dodsworth; Counter Fraud Manager; Veritau North Yorkshire
	22TUJonathan.Dodsworth@veritau.co.ukU22T
	Robert Beane; Information Governance Manager; Veritau North Yorkshire

	270318 Annual Plans Appendix 1 Audit Plan 2018
	Introduction
	2018/19 Internal Audit Plan

	270318 Annual Plans Appendix 2 Counter Fraud Plan
	Introduction
	2018/19 Counter Fraud Plan

	270318 Annual Plans Appendix 3 Information Governance Plan
	Introduction
	2018/19 Information Governance Plan


	8 Review of Annual Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
	270318 Review of Treasury  Management Strategy
	270318 Review of Treasury Management Cabinet Report Annex
	270318 Treasury Management Annex A
	10 2018/19 Capital Programme Budget, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators

	270318 Treasury Management Annex A1
	10 2018/19 Capital Programme Budget, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators
	060218 Capital Prog and TMSS - Annex A1


	270318 Treasury Management Annex B
	10 2018/19 Capital Programme Budget, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators
	060218 Capital Prog and TMSS - Annex B


	270318 Treasury Management Annex C, D and E
	10 2018/19 Capital Programme Budget, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators
	060218 Capital Prog and TMSS - Annex C, D and E




	9 Brexit - Update on Implications for Local Authorities
	270318 Update on Brexit - Implications for Local Authorities
	270318 Update on Brexit - Annex A

	10 2018/19 Reporting Programme



